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Pinewood Shepperton plc is a leading provider of studio 
and related services to the global film and television 
industry. Our services support film production, filmed 
television and studio television recording, digital content 
services and facilities for media related businesses.  

The Group’s mission is to: 

• Continue to create the UK’s leading film, television and 
media destination; 

• Enhance our brand heritage; 

• Exceed our customers’ expectations through our 
commitment to professionalism, quality of service 
and offering sustainable advantage; and 

• Increase value for all our stakeholders. 
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Highlights 
 
 

• Revenue £64.1m (year ended 31 March 2013 restated*: £55.0m) 

• Operating profit £4.9m (year ended 31 March 2013 
restated*: £3.8m) 

• Operating profit from Media Services activities before 
exceptional items £9.2m (year ended 31 March 2013 
restated*: £8.9m) 

• Basic earnings per share 10.8p 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 3.6p) 

• Basic earnings per share adjusted for exceptional items 11.5p 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 10.1p) 

• Final dividend of 1.9p per share declared 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 1.5p) 

• Net debt of £40.2m (31 March 2013 restated*: £33.1m) and 
gearing ratio, excluding fair value and loan issue costs, of 48.3% 
(31 March 2013 restated*: 41.8%) 

* Certain of the prior year comparatives have been restated due to a change in accounting policy for the Group’s joint ventures. See Notes 2 and 8 for 
further details. 
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The Voice – Recording on The Richard Attenborough Stage © Wall To Wall Media 
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Chairman’s statement 
 

Pinewood Shepperton plc has once again delivered an outstanding performance. Revenues in all the key areas of the 
business have seen substantial increases, especially in Television, with total revenue of £64.1m for the year ended 
31 March 2014 (year ended 31 March 2013 restated: £55.0m). 

Investment in its existing facilities continues to ensure that the Group remains the leading destination for producers of 
screen-based content. A major upgrade to its Television business has been completed, including the latest 45,000 sq ft 
multi-purpose facility at Pinewood Studios, Q Stage, completed on 27 September 2013. The new television studio, TV3, 
at Pinewood Studios became home to Camelot plc, operators of the National Lottery, who moved in under a five-year 
contract on 9 September 2013. 

Pinewood Pictures has broadened its investment advisory portfolio to include the Welsh Government’s £30m Media 
Investment Budget, alongside the £25m Isle of Man Media Development Fund it has advised on since 2012.  

During the period, the Group invested both its own resources and funds on behalf of the Isle of Man Media Development 
Fund in five (year ended 31 March 2013: three) UK film productions, Robot Overlords, The Riot Club, Pressure, Kill Your 
Friends and Spooks: The Greater Good. Each of these projects are at different stages of completion and have yet to 
commence commercial exploitation. These projects represent a gross expenditure of £23.9m on independent film 
production (year ended 31 March 2013: £17.1m) in the UK. The Group qualified for an aggregate film tax credit of £3.1m 
on the expenditure from the above productions and from the completion of prior year projects. As expected, this largely 
offsets the operating loss in the Media Investment segment in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The Company’s joint venture with River’s Rock LLC is now operational under the brand ‘Pinewood Atlanta Studios’, a full 
service film and entertainment studio complex comprising five sound stages within a 288-acre site. Strategic opportunities 
in other regions of the world include Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios, which saw immediate occupation by The 
Weinstein Company for Netflix with the production of their TV series Marco Polo and also Pinewood Dominican Republic 
Studios, which opened in May 2014. A Consultancy Services Agreement was signed with the Dalian Wanda Group to 
advise on the design and construction of a new film studio complex in China, as part of the ‘Qingdao Oriental Movie 
Metropolis’ opening in 2016.  

We welcome the decision by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to grant the outline planning 
permission for Pinewood Studios Development Framework (“PSDF”) on 19 June 2014. PSDF is a long-term scheme of 
national significance which will address the increasing global demand for production facilities in the UK and deliver growth 
for the Company. 

Christopher Naisby joined the Board as Finance Director on 30 September 2013. He has been with the Group since 2001. 

The Board is committed to paying dividends in line with its policy of not less than three times cover, and as a result the 
Board has decided to recommend a final dividend of 1.9p per share.  

The Pinewood brand enjoys a reputation for excellence not just in the UK, but across the globe. This has enabled us to 
identify and win new business opportunities. On behalf of all our shareholders I am pleased to pay tribute to all of our 
staff and our leadership team for implementing the Board’s strategy with such skill and success. We look forward to 
this continuing. 

Lord Grade of Yarmouth, CBE 
Chairman 

25 June 2014 
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Strategic report  
 

 

This Strategic report has been prepared solely to provide additional information to shareholders to assess the Company’s 
strategies and the potential for those strategies to succeed. 

The Strategic report contains certain forward-looking statements. These statements are made by the Directors in good 
faith based on the information available to them up to the time of their approval of this report and such statements should 
be treated with caution due to the inherent uncertainties, including both economic and business risk factors, underlying 
any such forward-looking information.  

The Directors, in preparing this Strategic report, have complied with Section 414C of the Companies Act 2006.  

Prior year restatement 
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company changed its accounting policy relating to joint ventures due to the 
adoption of certain new accounting standards (See Notes 2 and 8 for further details). This has necessitated a restatement 
of the primary financial statements and certain related notes for the comparative period, namely the year ended 31 March 
2013. There has been no impact on profit after tax for the prior year. 

Business model 
Pinewood Shepperton plc is a leading provider of services to the global film and television industry. Our services support 
film production, filmed television and studio television recording, digital content services and facilities for media-related 
business (“Media Hub”). 

The Group’s unique selling point is the breadth of production-related facilities and services available ‘on the lot’ – which 
provide clients with a full service offering. 

 
The Company currently has two reporting segments – Media Services, which provides studio and related services to the 
film, television and screen-based industries; and Media Investment, which provides investment funding and production 
services to the film and television industries. 
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The Media Services segment has principally three complementary operating streams – Film; Television; and Media Hub. 

Within Film, operations are further divided into Stage and Ancillary, which provide production facilities to clients, Digital 
Content Services (“DCS”) and International. 

DCS offers picture and sound post production, media storage, management and distribution for original English language 
and internationally re-versioned content. 

International operations, which leverage the Pinewood brand, include providing international sales, marketing, studio 
development and consultancy services in Canada, the Dominican Republic, Malaysia and China, plus joint ventures in the 
United States of America and China. 

The Company has a leading Television business which provides a range of unique TV production facilities, often utilising its 
stages and DCS offerings to host and service large ‘event’ television productions. The television offering consists of a 
comprehensive range of production facilities such as high definition television studios, film stages and post production 
services to support all forms of television production. 

The Media Hub is currently home to approximately 228 independent businesses, representing and providing expertise, 
equipment and support to the film, television, video games, advertising and photographic industries. These companies 
come together to form a unique cluster and centre of excellence for the entire creative industry. 

The Media Investment segment (known as ‘Pinewood Pictures’) includes an agreement to source and advise on film and 
high-end television investment opportunities for the £25m Media Development Fund established by the Isle of Man 
Treasury (“IOMT”), and to monitor and capitalise on UK distribution rights in films and television programmes funded by 
the IOMT. On 17 February 2014, the Group also signed an agreement with the Welsh Government to advise on its new 
£30m television and film investment fund. The segment also involves identification and investment by the Group in British 
film and high-end television productions.  

Objectives and strategy 
The Group’s mission is to: 

• Continue to create the UK’s leading film, television and media destination; 

• Enhance our brand heritage; 

• Exceed our customers’ expectations through our commitment to professionalism, quality of service and offering 
sustainable advantage; and 

• Increase value for all our stakeholders.  

Targeted strategic plans to achieve this mission include: 

• Operational growth: 

• Increase capacity through expansion of existing stage and studio facilities; 

• Investment in digital activities; and 

• Increased Media Investment activity. 

• Property development: 

• Plan to increase overall capacity through PSDF; and 

• Demand-led Media Hub expansion to limit speculative risk. 
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• Leveraging the brand: 

• Selective international growth through joint ventures with limited capital commitment; 

• Lower risk film investment; and  

• Provision of investment advice to third party ‘content’ funds. 

Key performance indicators 
The Board uses a number of key performance indicators (“KPIs”) to monitor the Company’s performance, as well as to 
measure progress against the Company’s objectives.  

The KPIs used to measure performance, and which are discussed in further detail below for the year, are: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013 
(restated) 

Media Services   
Revenue (including intersegment)  £50.4m  £46.5m
Operating profit before exceptional items  £9.2m £8.9m 
Return on capital employed  8.7% 7.9% 
Stage occupancy  81%  76%
Media Hub occupancy (as a % of net lettable area)  96% 97%
    
Media Investment   
Number of active Film Production Companies during the year  8  3
Loss after tax  (£0.2m)  (£0.2m)
Film finance funding invested by the Group £1.9m £1.1m
Film finance funding from third party funds  £11.3m £1.5m
    
Group performance   
Profit after tax  £5.4m  £1.8m
Earnings per share adjusted for exceptional items  11.5p  10.1p
Cash generated from operations  £14.0m  £11.4m
Net debt  £40.2m £33.1m
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Thor: The Dark World – K Stage, Shepperton Studios © Walt Disney Studios 
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Media Services review 
Total revenues within this segment were £50.4m for the year (year ended 31 March 2013 restated: £46.5m), including 
£1.2m of intersegment revenue (year ended 31 March 2013: £0.5m). Intersegment revenues relate to revenue generated 
from the utilisation of the Company’s core services by the Group’s wholly-owned Film Production Companies.  

Film 
Film revenues for the year ended 31 March 2014 were £37.4m (year ended 31 March 2013: £35.2m), an increase year 
on year of 6.3%, due to high levels of utilisation of existing facilities plus the addition of new facilities such as Q Stage.  

The demand for the Company’s facilities throughout the year has been strong, as reflected in stage occupancy of 81% 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 76%). As a result, the Company has not been able to accommodate several film 
productions. The new 45,000 sq ft studio facility, Q Stage, at Pinewood Studios was completed on time and on budget 
on 27 September 2013, and was 100% utilised for the remainder of the year to 31 March 2014. 

The largest film production based at Pinewood Studios during the period was Cinderella (Disney) and the largest 
production at Shepperton Studios was Guardians of the Galaxy (Marvel).  

Other major productions which were based at Pinewood and Shepperton during the year include Exodus (Fox) and 
Avengers: Age of Ultron (Marvel). 

DCS revenues included within the total Film revenue for the year ended 31 March 2014 were £6.5m (year ended 31 
March 2013: £6.2m). 

Notable sound post production work completed during the period included Kenneth Branagh’s Jack Ryan: Shadow Recruit 
(Paramount Pictures) and Dexter Fletcher’s musical Sunshine on Leith (DNA Films). The Company also successfully 
completed original sound work for the games industry on Sega’s Rome Total War and Shogun 2. 

Digital Production Services (“DPS”); the secure management of the data generated from 2D and 3D digital film shoots on-
set and on location, including Guardians of the Galaxy (Marvel), The Woman in Black: Angel of Death (Exclusive 
Media/Hammer Film Productions) and Ex Machina (DNA). 

DCS continues to enhance its offering to the growing number of feature films choosing to shoot with digital camera 
technology and television productions wishing to work in a digital file-based environment at the Studios.  

International 
International revenues for the year included within Film were £1.1m (year ended 31 March 2013: £1.0m) and principally 
relate to sales and marketing agreements in Toronto, Malaysia and Dominican Republic.  

Pinewood Toronto Studios The Company has a sales and marketing agreement with Pinewood Toronto Studios (“PTS”). 
During the year, PTS attracted a number of high profile film and television productions which included Poltergeist 
(MGM/Fox 2000), Crimson Peak (Legendary/Universal), television series The Strain (FX) and the Canadian television 
series The Listener (CTV). 

The original agreement was for a five-year period from 26 May 2009. During the year, it was extended for a further five 
years, expiring in May 2019. 
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The National Lottery Live –TV Three, Pinewood Studios 
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Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios Practical completion of the film sound stages and associated facilities at Pinewood 
Iskandar Malaysia Studios saw immediate occupation by The Weinstein Company for Netflix, with the production of 
their TV series Marco Polo. The television studios have been completed and are presently in the final stages of 
systems integration.  

The facility consists of five film sound stages totalling 100,000 sq ft and two fully integrated TV studios totalling 
24,000 sq ft along with production support facilities. Additionally, a 56,000 sq ft blue screen paddock tank for water 
effects and marine filming has now been finished and is currently undergoing practical testing prior to official launch. 

Pinewood Dominican Republic Studios Pinewood Dominican Republic Studios achieved practical completion with three 
sound stages, workshops and production support facilities coming online shortly after the year end in April 2014 to 
complement and support the completed water tank facility opened last year. The facility comprises 53,000 sq ft of sound 
stages and 85,000 sq ft of production support space, along with the 8-acre water effects facility and its 56,000 sq ft 
natural horizon water tank. 

Pinewood Atlanta Studios Pinewood Atlanta Studios achieved practical completion of the phase 1 build in January 2014 
with five sound stages, production offices and workshops coming onstream.  

Phase 1 comprises 100,000 sq ft of film sound stages, 90,000 sq ft of workshops and 200,000 sq ft of production facility 
and media campus space. A sixth stage of 18,000 sq ft is currently under construction, with completion anticipated in 
June 2014 for immediate occupation. 

Tenant workshops are attracting interest, with Home Depot opening for business on the studio lot in April 2014. 
A recycling centre opened in May 2014 and additional facilities are currently under construction. 

China Song Lin, the Group’s 50:50 joint operation with Seven Stars Media, continues to explore a number of business 
proposals in the growing film and television market in China. The venture’s current remit is to identify and develop 
opportunities to provide co-production services between Chinese and international film makers, such as management of 
film funding and consultancy services to film and television studios in China.  

Pinewood’s consultancy with The Dalian Wanda Group for the Qingdao Oriental Movie Metropolis development 
commenced in February 2014 and a proposed master plan with associated analysis has been presented. It is anticipated 
that the studio complex will open in 2016. 

Television 
Television (“TV”) revenues for the year were £6.2m (year ended 31 March 2013: £5.2m). 

The Company has a leading television business which provides a range of unique TV production facilities, often utilising its 
stages and DCS offerings to host and service large ‘event’ television productions such as Channel 4’s The Taste and BBC’s 
The Voice. The television offering includes a comprehensive range of production facilities, including high definition 
television studios, film stages and post production services to support all forms of television production. 

Pinewood television studios and associated DCS services played host to new and repeat business, including Would I Lie 
To You (Zeppotron), The Guess List (12 Yard) and 8 Out of 10 Cats (Endemol) during the year. 

The National Lottery Live (Camelot) is broadcast from Pinewood TV3, a new purpose-built facility which opened in 
September 2013. Euromillions and Bingo Lotto are streamed live from the purpose-built digital online studio.  

High-end television tax relief The Company has received a number of enquiries from high-end TV productions which are 
seeking to take advantage of newly introduced Government tax incentives. At present, however, the Company has not 
been able to accommodate these productions at either Pinewood or Shepperton due to capacity constraints.  
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Media Hub  
Media Hub revenues inclusive of service, utility and facility charges for the year were £5.6m (year ending 31 March 2013 
restated: £5.6m).  

The total number of Media Hub companies accommodated at the year end was 228 at Pinewood and Shepperton Studios, 
with occupancy of 96% across a net lettable area of 349,000 sq ft (year ended 31 March 2013: 241 companies, 97% 
occupancy, 347,000 sq ft).  

Gross and operating margins 
The Media Services segment gross margin, including intersegment revenues, for the year ended 31 March 2014 is 37.7% 
(year ended 31 March 2013 restated: 38.8%). The year on year variance is principally driven by the revenue mix and an 
increase in depreciation costs on facility and infrastructure expenditure. 

The Media Services operating margin before exceptional items is 18.3% (year ended 31 March 2013 restated: 19.2%). 
The variance is principally due to factors noted above for gross margin.  

Exceptional expenses 
The Group discloses as exceptional items on the face of the income statement those items of expense which, because of 
the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate disclosure to allow users of the 
financial statements to better understand the elements of financial performance in the year, so as to facilitate comparison 
with prior periods and to better assess trends in financial performance. 

The Company has incurred exceptional charges of £0.5m during the year (year ended 31 March 2013: £3.0m), as 
detailed below. 

Group reorganisation The Group incurred exceptional reorganisation costs of £0.1m in the year (year ended 31 March 
2013: £0.2m), in relation to the restructuring of certain business areas. 

Transaction costs The Group incurred exceptional transaction costs of £0.2m in the year (year ended 31 March 2013: 
£nil), in relation to a potential joint venture which has not progressed. 

Teddington exit The Group announced plans to cease activity at the Teddington Studio site during 2013, and as a result 
established an onerous lease provision of £1.5m at 31 March 2013, plus asset impairments and exit costs of £0.6m. 
During the year ending 31 March 2014, an additional provision of £0.2m has been recognised. 

Isle of Man Media Development Fund The Group incurred costs of £0.4m during the year ended 31 March 2013, mainly 
in relation to professional fees as a result of signing an agreement with the Isle of Man Treasury (“IOMT”) to source and 
advise on film and high-end television investment opportunities for the £25m fund established by the IOMT and to 
monitor and capitalise on UK distribution rights in films and television programmes funded by the IOMT. No such costs 
were incurred in the current year. 

AIM listing As a result of the Company’s ordinary shares admission to AIM in July 2012, the Group incurred £0.3m of  
non-recurring professional adviser fees during the year ended 31 March 2013.  

Details of exceptional costs incurred in the year ended 31 March 2013 can be found in Note 7 of these accounts. 



12 Pinewood Shepperton plc  
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 
 Strategic report continued 

 
 

 

Return on capital employed 
The Company measures return on capital employed (“ROCE”) for the Media Services segment by reference to annualised 
operating profit before exceptional items, including intersegment profit, as a percentage of average capital employed, 
being total equity plus interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014 was 8.7% 
(12 months ended 31 March 2013 restated: 7.9%).  

The ROCE year on year is principally driven by significant capital investment during the current and previous year 
on projects which have either become fully revenue generating or generated earnings for at least part of the year. 
This includes the TV3 (£3.3m capital cost) and Q Stage (£6.5m capital cost) projects which came online in September 
2013, PSDF (£1.7m capital cost) and ongoing energy infrastructure upgrades (£2.2m capital cost). 
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Belle – © David Appleby. Courtesy of Fox Searchlight Pictures 
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Media Investment review 
Media Investment revenue for the year was £14.9m (year ended 31 March 2013: £8.9m).  

Investment advisory  
Following the launch of Pinewood Pictures in October 2012, the Group has further built on opportunities to advise third party 
funds and to invest itself directly in filmed content. In February 2014, the Group announced the signature of a deal to advise 
upon the Media Investment Budget (£30m) for the Welsh Government. This deal also included a provision for Pinewood to 
lease a new studio facility close to Cardiff Bay, to be known as Pinewood Studio Wales. The new facility will primarily be 
utilised to attract high-end television drama and will be marketed in conjunction with the Media Investment budget.  

The combined advisory investment funds now advised by the Company total £55m, making them a significant investment 
portal for British film and television content, and providing the opportunity for the Welsh and Isle of Man Governments to 
co-invest in future productions. 

Investment advisory revenue of £0.4m (year ended 31 March 2013: £0.2m) was earned from the Isle of Man Media 
Development Fund (“IOM-MDF”). 

During the year, the IOM-MDF invested a total of £11.3m (year ended 31 March 2013: £1.5m) in Robot Overlords 
(Pinewood Pictures/Pinewood Productions/Tempo Productions), Pressure (Newscope Films/Pinewood Pictures/Pinewood 
Productions) and Spooks: The Greater Good (Pinewood Pictures/Pinewood Productions/BBC/Shine) following investment 
advice from Pinewood Pictures.  

In addition to the investments made by the third party IOM-MDF, the Group provided further film finance totalling £1.9m 
to its wholly-owned subsidiary film production companies for the production of Robot Overlords, The Riot Club (Pinewood 
Productions/Blueprint Pictures), Pressure (European Film Bonds, HireWorks), Kill Your Friends (Pinewood Productions/ 
Icon/Altitude/Worlds End Television) and Spooks: The Greater Good (year ended 31 March 2013: £0.9m). 

During the year the Company recouped £0.3m against film investments made to date, and earned distribution 
commissions of £0.2m. 

Film Production Companies 
Revenue from Film Production Companies (“FPCs”) for the year totalled £14.0m (year ended 31 March 2013: £8.7m). 
The increase is due to investments in five independent productions during the year, Robot Overlords, The Riot Club, 
Pressure, Kill Your Friends and Spooks: The Greater Good, compared to three in 2013 (which were all still active for part 
of the current year). An FPC is considered active until the production is completed and delivered. 

The operating loss from FPC activity of £3.5m (year ended 31 March 2013: £1.5m) is largely offset by UK Film tax relief, 
as expected.  

Loss after tax 
Results for the Media Investment segment are more meaningfully reviewed at the after tax level. 

Loss after tax for the segment is £0.2m (year ended 31 March 2013: £0.2m loss). 



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 15 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 

 Strategic report continued 
 
 

Group performance 
Total consolidated revenue for the year is £64.1m (year ended 31 March 2013 restated: £55.0m).  

Profit after tax for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £5.4m (year ended 31 March 2013: £1.8m).  

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period were 10.8p (year ended 31 March 2013: 3.6p). Normalised basic 
and diluted earnings per share for the year (after adjusting for exceptional items) were 11.5p (year ended 31 March 
2013: 10.1p). 

EBITDA (earnings before exceptional items, interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) for the year was £9.9m 
(year ended 31 March 2013 restated: £10.9m), including £3.8m of Media Investment loss (year ended 31 March 2013: 
£2.1m loss).  

Cash flow  
The Company generated operating cash flow before changes in working capital for the year of £9.4m (year ended 
31 March 2013 restated: £10.0m). After adjusting for movements in working capital, cash generated from operations 
for the year was £14.0m (year ended 31 March 2013 restated: £11.4m), from which finance costs of £2.1m (year ended 
31 March 2013 restated: £2.7m) and net corporation tax of £0.2m (year ended 31 March 2013: £0.9m refund) were paid. 

Cash outflow on property, plant and equipment during the year was £18.4m (year ended 31 March 2013: £9.3m). 
The main areas of expenditure during the year were on the Q Stage (£6.5m), TV3 (£3.3m), energy infrastructure 
upgrades (£2.2m), Pinewood Studios Development Framework (£1.7m) and versatile production space (£1.6m).  

This capital expenditure supports the strategic goals of the Group by enhancing existing assets and creating new,  
state-of-the-art facilities to fulfil our customers’ requirements.  

The significant investment over the year in the Group’s capital assets has been funded from core debt facility draw downs 
of £8.0m with the remaining £10.4m provided from the positive cash flow generating activities of the business.  

Dividend 
The Board is committed to pay dividends in line with its dividend policy of not less than three times cover, and as a result 
the Board has recommended a final dividend of 1.9p (year ended 31 March 2013: 1.5p) for approval at the Annual 
General Meeting, making a total dividend for the year of 2.5p (year ended 31 March 2013: 2.0p). 

The dividend is to be paid on 6 October 2014 to shareholders on the register at 5 September 2014 (ex-dividend date of 
3 September 2014). 
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Net debt and financial gearing 
At 31 March 2014, net debt, including restricted cash held for sole use by Pinewood Film Production Companies, was 
£40.2m (31 March 2013 restated: £33.1m). Financial gearing at 31 March 2014 excluding fair value and loan issue costs 
was 48.3% (31 March 2013 restated: 41.8%). 

The Company has banking facilities of up to £55m, which comprise a £35m revolving credit facility, a £15m term facility 
and a £5m overdraft facility. These facilities are secured on certain of the Company’s assets. The revolving credit facility 
has no scheduled repayments and matures in November 2016. The term facility contains scheduled repayments of £1.5m 
on both 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016 and matures in November 2016. The £5m overdraft facility is reviewed annually. 
These facilities were arranged in 2012 and there have been no changes since that date.  

The revolving credit and term facilities have a range of covenants and events of default together with variable margins 
between 285 and 435 basis points over LIBOR. 

The increase in net debt is principally driven by continued investment in the capital assets of the Group. 

Taxation  
The total corporation tax credit for the year, based on profit before tax of £3.6m, was £1.8m (year ended  
31 March 2013: £0.4m). 

The corporation tax credit for the year includes £3.1m of UK Film tax relief for Film Production Companies (year ended 
31 March 2013: £1.5m), which reflects the accounting treatment of the Group’s FPCs and largely offsets the operating 
loss from Media Investment in respect of FPCs. 

The underlying rate of tax on profit before accounting for UK Film tax relief from FPCs, prior year adjustments and 
exceptional items is 23% (year ended 31 March 2013: 26%). 

Going concern 
Having considered the performance of the Group for the year to 31 March 2014 above and future developments outlined 
below, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the 
financial statements.  

The Group has primary banking facilities and an overdraft facility in place until November 2016. The overdraft is subject 
to an annual review. Although the Group is in a net current liability position of £11.4m, the Group has £17.8m of undrawn 
committed loan facilities in place. The Group also has £8.3m of asset financing available to be drawn upon, including 
£1.6m of a pre-approved facility. The Directors are confident these undrawn debt facilities provide sufficient headroom 
to support continued trading.  

In addition, Notes 21 and 28 to the financial statements include the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for 
managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging activities 
and its exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Group also has a strong brand and reputation in the marketplace with a wide number of customers and suppliers 
in the film and television industry. As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its 
business risks and operations successfully. 



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 17 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 

 Strategic report continued 
 
 

Future developments 
The Pinewood Studios Development Framework (“PSDF”)  
PSDF is a £200m proposed long-term scheme of national significance, designed to address increasing global demand 
for production facilities in the UK and deliver growth for the next 15 years. It comprises a substantial expansion of the 
existing Pinewood Studios by adding a total of 100,000 sq m of new facilities, including ten large stages with supporting 
workshops, production offices and infrastructure. The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government approved 
the outline planning consent for the project on 19 June 2014.  

The carrying value of all PSDF-related assets totals £8.8m, which includes costs incurred during the planning process 
of £3.5m and land of £5.3m. The Company has commenced work on the preparations for the next phase of development 
of this long-term project. 

Teddington Studios 
The Company will vacate Teddington Studios on 24 December 2014. The Company has elected to consolidate the activity 
from this site with the activities at Pinewood and during the year ended 31 March 2013 determined the lease on the 
Studio was an onerous contract. The estimated costs under the onerous lease were provided for in the income statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2013, however, as a result of changes in the utilisation of the leased premises the estimate 
may be subject to revisions. The Company utilised £1.2m of the provision during the year ended 31 March 2014 and has 
recognised an additional provision of £0.2m. 

International 
The Company continues to actively explore strategic opportunities in other regions of the world.  

Media Investment 
The Company has secured the advisory role for two media development investment funds to date and is actively 
considering further funds. Film finance, both in terms of fund advice and direct diversification opportunities, continues to 
be an important driver for the future.  

Pinewood Studio Wales 
Initial designs for the conversion of the Wentloog Energy Centre, Cardiff, have been submitted by Pinewood and are 
currently being evaluated by the Welsh Government’s contractors and architects. Conversion of the building to four stages 
and associated facilities is expected to commence during the second half of 2014 for a calendar year end completion. 

Outlook 
During the year, the Company had a strong performance with significant revenue increases in every area of the business. 
This has resulted in total revenues going up by 16.5%. 

The Company has made an excellent start to the new financial year, enjoying good visibility for the year as a whole. 
Demand for the Studios’ UK facilities is at an unprecedented level. We welcome the decision on 19 June 2014 by the 
Communities Secretary to grant permission for the Pinewood Studios Development Framework, as recommended 
by the Planning Inspectorate. We will proceed quickly with the preparations for construction of this much needed 
additional capacity. 
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Principal risks and uncertainties 
The Board views effective risk management as a primary part of the Group’s wider strategy and is fully committed to the 
identification, evaluation and management of significant risks facing the Group. The table below outlines the key risks and 
uncertainties identified by the Board, together with an outline of mitigation activities. 

1. General risks 
Risk Description Mitigation 

Importance of key 
customers and big 
budget films 

The Group’s largest customers account for 
a high percentage of revenues. If ‘big budget’ film 
makers cease to choose the Group’s facilities this 
would reduce revenues. 

Maintaining strong, long-standing relationships 
through consistent levels of service and retaining 
employees to offer continuity. Diversification 
of revenues through the development of the 
Group’s strategy. Maintaining strong relationships 
with key industry decision-makers at Government 
level to continue to highlight the importance of 
the tax credit regime. 

Guild/union 
disruptions 

Members of the various trade guilds/unions 
work on a high proportion of UK inward 
investment films. 

Maintaining strong, long-standing relationships 
with members of guilds and unions. 

International 
agreements 

Less direct and indirect control. The Board regularly monitors the performance of 
the entities with which it has agreements and the 
wider geopolitical context. 

Loss of reputation Providing services to the worldwide film industry 
and representing studios internationally requires 
a robust reputation. Damage to the reputation 
could have an adverse effect on the Group. 

Maintaining strong relationships and open lines of 
communication with customers and international 
‘partners’ through the Directors and Executive 
Management Team. Investing in and adapting 
security across all key sites to maintain high 
levels of security. Continuing to focus closely on 
safeguarding confidentiality.  

Recovery of the 
economy 

Although the economic outlook is improving, 
recovery is still in a state of flux. 

The Board monitors the external environment 
and its impact on the industry and has a 
number of strategic initiatives to respond 
to anticipated changes. 
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2. Financial risks 
Risk Description Mitigation 

Fiscal incentives Cessation of the UK’s film, animation, video 
games and high-end television tax incentives. 

No direct mitigating actions can be taken.  
Reasoned, evidence-based arguments continue 
to be put forward to the Government highlighting 
the cultural and economic contribution that 
screen-based industries make to the economy. 

Exchange rates The majority of international film and high-end 
television clients are in the US and an adverse 
movement in currency exchange rates may result 
in a reduction in the Group’s competitive edge 
versus other European or international locations. 

This risk is mitigated in part by the Group’s 
strategy to invest in international sites.  
Should the magnitude of foreign currency 
transactions increase sufficiently, the Group 
would consider implementing a foreign exchange 
hedging strategy. 

Treasury Risk is in a number of areas including credit risk, 
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. 

These are discussed in detail in Note 28 to the 
Annual Report. 

Increases to 
business rates and 
valuation 

Potential increase in business rates and valuation 
would adversely impact the business. 

No direct mitigating actions can be taken, 
albeit representations would be made to 
the Government. 

3. Operational risks 
Risk Description Mitigation 

Health and safety, 
environmental and 
disaster recovery 

A significant incident could put people and/or 
the environment at risk, as well as damage 
the Group’s reputation. A major incident such 
as a fire or explosion could result in a number 
of issues, including revenue loss and 
reputational damage. 

A dedicated Health, Safety and Fire Team carries 
out regular risk evaluation. Further details can be 
found in the Corporate responsibility section of 
the Annual Report.  
A Business Continuity Team has been established 
and a policy is in place to ensure that the 
operational business continues as far as possible 
in the event of a major incident. 
All productions on-site are required to have 
public liability insurance in place prior to 
accessing any facilities. 

Failure of key 
suppliers 

Although the economic outlook is improving, 
recovery remains fragile and any further shocks 
could result in key suppliers to the Group being 
unable to maintain an effective supply chain. 

The Group retains good supplier relationships and 
alternative suppliers for generic services could be 
sourced in the medium term. 

Health risk of 
pandemics, acts 
of terrorism and 
natural disasters 

Diseases, terrorist threats and natural disasters 
may reduce the appeal to customers of travel and 
may impact local operational capability. 

With UK-based studios and operational partners 
in a number of international locations, the Group 
considers that the availability of location options 
would reduce the risk in this area. 

Rising energy 
prices 

A general climate of increasing prices for all forms 
of energy. 

The Group engages energy consultants who 
monitor, and provide advice on, the energy 
markets. The Group has also invested in an 
energy-efficient replacement equipment 
programme and an automated meter reading 
system to measure and monitor energy 
consumption. 
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Employees 
The Company actively considers the position of its employees’ rights through comprehensive and regularly reviewed 
employment practices in the areas of recruitment, training, welfare, remuneration and employee relations. The Director 
of Strategy and Communications has Board responsibility for these areas and regularly updates the Board on relevant issues. 

At the Executive Management Team level, the Group Human Resources Manager maintains responsibility for all 
operational human resources issues and provides the Board with a monthly report. 

In addition to a published Grievance policy, the Company maintains a ‘whistleblower’ policy, providing an opportunity for 
employees to raise grievances with senior management initially, and then ultimately with the Independent Non-Executive 
Director, Ruth Prior. 

The Company’s stated policy on equal opportunities recognises the diversity of individuals and has procedures in place to 
ensure that recruitment and promotion recognises such diversity and is not biased by any consideration of age, gender, 
disability, colour, racial origin, religion or sexual orientation. The Company also seeks to provide employees with 
reasonable conditions of employment and career prospects. 

Employees receive regular and relevant communication via the Company’s intranet site Spotlight and staff briefings, 
regarding operational issues and trading performance and, where appropriate, the views of employees are sought in 
guiding business practices and strategy. 

The Company has adopted a training policy whereby all members of staff are actively encouraged to contribute to their 
own development. The Company believes that personal development is a partnership between the individual and the 
Company and the attitude of the individual to their own development is a key element of this process. 

Training is seen as serving three main purposes: helping to meet the Company’s corporate aims and objectives; helping 
to improve the individual’s performance in undertaking their current duties; and developing the individual’s abilities and 
potential by extending knowledge, skills and influencing attitudes. During the period, 25% of training was health and 
safety-related and 75% related to skills training and career progression. As part of the Pinewood Studios Group 
Apprenticeship Scheme, staff members completed NVQ Apprenticeships in Customer Service and Business Administration, 
with a further six apprenticeships in Digital, IT, Drapes, Post Production and Maintenance and Plumbing. In 2013, the 
Company launched the first ever Studio Management Diploma, which was a huge success. 

Executive Management Team 
The Executive Management Team members are the first line of support for the Board and their combined experience 
and backgrounds assist in delivering the Group’s strategy and maximising stakeholder value. They are a key part of the 
succession plan for the Group and their training and development needs are reviewed regularly to ensure that the talent 
pool is developed and retained. 

Details of the Executive Management Team can be found on the Group’s website,  
www.pinewoodgroup.com/about-us/management-team. 
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Corporate responsibility  
The Company continues to combine financial support with innovative approaches for sharing business assets and 
knowledge to local charities and organisations and various national charities linked to the wider screen-based industries.  

Support is given to the various BFI Academy groups by way of studio visits and the sourcing of industry professionals to 
give talks to the students.  

Pinewood has also joined the international jury for the 2014 Iris Prize Festival, Cardiff’s International gay and lesbian 
short film prize launched at the BFI.  

The National Film and Television School (‘‘NFTS”) ran a residential course for the BFI Academy scheme, and an exhibition 
of the work of students studying set design was held in the Pinewood Ballroom. The Company continues to provide a 
scholarship for an undergraduate at the NFTS. Pinewood and Shepperton also work with local schools, colleges and 
universities, including Buckinghamshire New University, Amersham and Wycombe College, Chalfont Community College 
and the London Film School.  

Assistance may also be available to any production on-site pursuing charitable purposes. 

Support continues to various industry organisations, such as guilds including the British Society of Cinematographers, 
British Kinematograph, Sound and Television Society, Guild of Production Designers, Designers Guild, the Association 
of Motion Picture Sound and the trade union Bectu.  

Pinewood Studios gives support to local charities, Buckinghamshire County Council events and organisations in the 
Iver/Iver Heath area, covering a wide spectrum of the community. Iver Heath Drama Club, Iver Heath Bowls Club and 
Delaford Youth Football Club have been supported and the Studio has also sponsored and/or hosted events in the 
Pinewood gardens, such as the Emergency Services Day which provides a family day for the local police, fire and 
ambulance services.  

Shepperton Studios continues to support Littleton Church of England Infant School, St Mary Magdalene Church, 
Spelthorne Borough Council and Chertsey and Shepperton annual regatta, together with various donations to local events.  

Sponsorship is given to South Bucks Riding for the Disabled, Spelthorne in Bloom, Spelthorne sports awards and various 
local council events.  

Recycling anything left over from productions is high on the agenda, and a scheme has been set up linking Pinewood and 
Shepperton with a set clearance company based at Pinewood to recycle any props to local schools and organisations.  

Events for staff and tenants are held on a regular basis, including screenings of films with which Pinewood and Shepperton 
Studios have been involved and those invested in by the Company’s Media Investment arm. Encouragement is given to 
staff members who wish to participate in charitable fundraising activities, and various staff and tenant activities are held 
throughout the year. In addition, community outdoor screenings are arranged at Pinewood and Shepperton Studios. 
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Health and safety issues  
The Company is committed to building a safe working environment and improving on its already high standards of health 
and safety, acknowledging its responsibilities under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and subordinate regulations. 

The Company places the safety of all persons in high regard and has a detailed policy that clearly details each employee’s 
responsibilities. 

Progress continues to be made with raising the profile of health and safety in the Company. The Group Health, Safety and 
Fire Team are always available to provide advice, supplemented by information on the Company’s intranet, Spotlight, 
which is accessible to all staff and clients. 

There was a slight rise in the number of minor staff accidents for 2013/2014 and a reduction in reportable injuries to two 
under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (“RIDDOR”). 

Neil Lees, Non-Executive Director, has Board accountability for health and safety issues supported by Nicholas Smith, 
Commercial Director, and the Executive Management Team. The Board monitors relevant health and safety issues 
each month. 

Environmental issues 
The Group’s environmental policy seeks to minimise any adverse impact that our business activities may have on the 
environment to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements, reduce CO2 emissions and continuously improve our 
environmental performance. 

Recycling  
In line with Pinewood’s ongoing commitment to provide further recycling opportunities for domestic waste, our new 
recycling centre is now open. The Company is able to recycle the majority of domestic waste generated on the Pinewood 
site. The new process has been embraced by all customers and we have seen a significant uplift in rebatable material 
driven by the elimination of all landfill waste. We are already reviewing the business model with a view to duplicating the 
system at Shepperton to realise further cost savings and material rebates. 

Travel Plan 
Travel Plan measures continue to be promoted to staff, tenants and productions to further reduce the number of vehicles 
arriving at the Studios, to cut the subsequent CO2 emissions and to promote sustainable travel options. The Travel Plan 
for Shepperton has recently been approved by Surrey County Council. 

Some of these initiatives include participation in the Cycle to Work scheme, provision of cycle shelters, travel information 
points, travel surveys, video conferencing facilities and electric car charging points. The Guaranteed Lift Home Policy and 
a Season Ticket Loan Scheme are also used to encourage staff to choose more sustainable modes of transport. 

The free Studio shuttle bus services to and from local railway stations have the greatest impact on reducing the number 
of car movements and associated CO2 emissions. The two hybrid pool cars that are available to staff when making a 
business journey are also proving popular. 
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Energy 
The Company continues to participate in the Government’s Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme 
(“CRC”), which aims to cut CO2 emissions by reducing energy consumption. 

The Group’s absolute CO2 emissions for 2013/14 are expected to be approximately 10% below the baseline figure from 
2010/11 and approximately 5% lower than in 2012/13. 

Initiatives to reduce CO2 emissions and energy consumption include: 

• the conversion of Pinewood from gas oil to gas; 

• replacing existing gas oil boilers with more energy-efficient gas fired models 

• measuring and monitoring of energy consumption; 

• introduction of Building Management Systems; 

• the identification of unnecessary energy consumption via the automated meter reading system; 

• extending the use of the automated meter reading system; and 

• the installation of energy-efficient motors, devices and systems wherever possible – including stage lighting and 
boiler controls. 

By order of the Board 

Ivan Dunleavy 
Chief Executive 

25 June 2014 
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Non-Executive Chairman 
Lord Grade of Yarmouth, CBE †# (71) began his career as a sports journalist. Previous positions include Chief 
Executive of Channel 4, Chairman and Chief Executive of First Leisure plc and Chairman of the Governors of the BBC and 
Chairman and Chief Executive of ITV plc. He is a Non-Executive Director of WRG and a Director of National Angels Ltd. 
Lord Grade has been Chairman of Pinewood Shepperton since February 2000. He was created a Life Peer in 2010. 

Executive Directors 
Ivan Dunleavy, Chief Executive Ivan Dunleavy (54) has spent his career in media businesses, initially in finance roles. 
Prior to his current role he was Chief Executive of VCI plc. He is also a Director of the industry trade body, UK Screen 
Association Limited.  

Andrew M. Smith, Director of Strategy and Communications and Company Secretary Andrew M. Smith (51) joined the 
Company in June 2008 as Group Director, Corporate Affairs. He became Company Secretary on 20 December 2010 and 
was appointed to the Board in May 2012. Prior to this he was Managing Partner of The Policy Partnership. He is a member 
of the Film Skills Council, the Skillset Craft and Technical Skills Academy Industry Board, the British Film Commission 
Advisory Board and the Buckinghamshire Thames Valley Local Enterprise Partnership. He is a Non-Executive Director 
of Bucks Business First Ltd. 

Nicholas Smith, Commercial Director Nicholas Smith (52) joined Pinewood Shepperton in May 2002 and was appointed 
to the Board in July 2005. In February 2012, Nicholas was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of Pinewood Iskandar 
Malaysia Studios SDN BHD.  

Steve Christian, ACA Steve Christian (50) is responsible for coordinating the investment advice to the Isle of Man 
Treasury, and Welsh Government Film and Television Funds. Prior to joining the Company he was responsible for 
overseeing the development of the Isle of Man’s film investment programme. He is currently a Non-Executive Director 
of the Isle of Man’s largest energy provider, The Manx Electricity Authority, and is also a Director of CinemaNX Limited, 
Fordex Limited, Agrimark Limited and Gasworks Media Limited. 

Christopher Naisby, FCCA, Finance Director (appointed 30 September 2013) Christopher Naisby (42) joined the 
Company in 2001, having previously held a number of positions in the Finance teams of construction and media 
companies, including Reed Elsevier. Following promotion to Financial Controller in April 2008, he became Finance 
Director of the Pinewood Studios Group in April 2012 and was appointed to the Board of Pinewood Shepperton plc in 
September 2013. 
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Non-Executive Directors  
Neil Lees (51) was appointed Deputy Chairman of the Peel Group in March 2012, having been an Executive Director 
since 2007. He began his career as a Company Secretary at Ferranti International and subsequently joined the Peel Group 
in 1994. He chairs a number of Peel Group businesses and operating companies and is also Chairman of the Trustees of 
Peel Ports Final Salary Pension Scheme. He was appointed to the Board of Pinewood Shepperton in 2011. 

Steven Underwood, ACA *†# (40) trained as a chartered accountant with Coopers & Lybrand. He joined the Board of 
the Peel Group as Corporate Development Director in March 2007 and was promoted to Chief Executive in April 2012. 
He previously spent eight years in investment banking with Rothschild. He represents the Peel Group on the Boards 
of a number of its investee companies. 

Ruth Prior     (47) is currently Deputy Chief Financial Officer at Worldpay. Prior to her current role, she was Group 
Chief Operating Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer of the EMI group of companies (2010–2012) and Finance 
Director of Portfolio Business at Terra Firma Capital Partners Limited (2002–2010). She was appointed to the Board of 
Pinewood Shepperton in 2012. 

Thomas Allison (66) is Chairman of Peel Ports and is the Non-Executive Chairman of Tulloch Homes Group, a  
Non-Executive Director of Celtic plc, a partner in Kiltane Investments and a Council Member of the CBI. Tom was, 
until recently, Chairman of Keepmoat and Chairman of Wood Mackenzie. He was appointed to the Board of Pinewood 
Shepperton in April 2013. 

* Member of the Audit Committee 
† Member of the Remuneration Committee 
# Member of the Nomination Committee 

 

†# *
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The Company is not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”), as it is listed on the AIM 
market operated by the London Stock Exchange. Whilst the Company has not elected to voluntarily adopt the Code, it is 
committed to high standards of corporate governance and has adopted procedures to institute good governance where 
practical and appropriate for an organisation of its size and complexity. The information included in this report is designed 
to illustrate the Company’s commitment to an appropriate governance framework and is not a statement of compliance 
with the Code. 

Membership of the Board 
As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprised of the Non-Executive Chairman, Lord Grade of Yarmouth; five Executive 
Directors: Ivan Dunleavy (Chief Executive), Steve Christian, Christopher Naisby, Nicholas Smith and Andrew M. Smith; 
and four Non-Executive Directors: Thomas Allison, Neil Lees, Ruth Prior (Senior Independent Director) and 
Steven Underwood.  

Further details of the Board members can be found on pages 24 and 25 of the Annual Report. 

Role and responsibility of the Board 
The Board is responsible for determining corporate strategy, treasury policy, approval of capital expenditure projects in 
excess of £75,000, dividend policy, interim and annual financial statements, all regulatory communications required by 
the Group and appointments to the Board. The Board continues to maintain and, where it considers necessary, enhance 
the financial disciplines across the Group. 

In advance of the monthly Board meeting, the Board members are provided with comprehensive historic and forward-
looking financial and operational information to support their understanding of the business and related strategic and 
operational issues and to enable them to fulfil their responsibilities accordingly. Where there are specific items that require 
Board approval, additional reports and supporting information is circulated. Directors are provided with regular access to 
the Company Secretary and to the Executive Management Team to facilitate their understanding of significant operational 
issues and assessment of the Group’s prospects, including the ongoing consideration of succession planning. This also 
ensures that the Directors can make further enquiries on financial, operational and strategic matters as and when 
required. There are also procedures in place to enable Board members to take independent professional advice 
as necessary. 

Independence of Directors 
Each of Thomas Allison, Neil Lees and Steven Underwood are executives of the Peel Group which currently indirectly holds 
58.05% of the Company’s issued share capital. As a consequence of the Peel Group’s holding in the Company, the Board 
considers Ruth Prior to be the only Independent Non-Executive Director. 

Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors (other than Ruth Prior) are not independent, the Board is of the view 
that all the Non-Executive Directors contribute significantly to the Group’s strategic direction and that their level of 
experience makes a significant and valuable contribution to the Board. The terms and conditions of appointment of  
Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection upon request from the Company Secretary. 

Conflicts of interest 
In accordance with Section 175 of the Companies Act 2006, procedures have been put into place for the disclosure by 
Directors of potential and/or actual conflicts of interest and these have been operated effectively. Each potential and/or 
actual conflict is disclosed as it arises and is considered by an appropriate quorum of Directors. Directors leave a Board 
meeting when matters relating to them, or which may constitute a conflict of interest, are being discussed. 

The Group has in place a share dealing code for dealings in shares by Directors and senior employees which is appropriate 
for an AIM-listed company. The Directors comply with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules for Companies relating to Directors’ 
dealings and take all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by the Group’s applicable employees.  
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Meetings of Directors 
During the year under review the Board held 11 scheduled Board meetings. The following table sets out attendance of the 
Directors at the Board and Committee meetings during the year ended 31 March 2014: 

 
Board 

meetings 

Audit 
Committee 

meetings 

Remuneration 
Committee 

meetings 

Nomination 
Committee 

meetings 

Chairman  
Lord Grade of Yarmouth 11 – 5 2
Executive Directors  
Ivan Dunleavy 11 – – –
Nicholas Smith 11 – – –
Andrew M. Smith  10 – – –
Steven Christian  10 – – –
Christopher Naisby (appointed 30 September 2013) 5 3 – –
Non-Executive Directors  
Steven Underwood 10 3 5 2
Neil Lees 9 – – –
Ruth Prior  11 3 5 1
Thomas Allison (appointed 29 April 2013) 10 – – –
Mark Senior (resigned 29 April 2013) 1 – – –

Executive Directors maintain regular and structured dialogue with major shareholders via direct scheduled meetings and 
communication in response to ad hoc queries and requests from shareholders. In addition, the Chairman is available to 
meet significant shareholders, as required. 

Board Committees 
The Board has established three Committees: Audit, Nomination and Remuneration. The Chairman and members of these 
Committees are appointed by the Board following consultation with the appropriate Committee’s Chairman. 

The terms of reference of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are contained in the ‘Corporate 
Governance’ sub-section of the ‘Board of Directors’ section of the Company’s Investor Relations website at 
www.pinewoodgroup.com/investor-relations. Further details of the Committees are set out below. 
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Board Committees continued 
Audit Committee 
Ruth Prior, Chairperson 
Steven Underwood  

The Audit Committee reports to the full Board of the Company and is responsible for: 

• monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s 
financial performance and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; 

• reviewing the Group’s internal financial controls and the Group’s internal control and risk management systems, 
including consideration of the need for an internal audit function; 

• making recommendations to the Board for a resolution to be put to the shareholders for their approval in general 
meetings on the appointment of the external auditor and the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement 
of the external auditor; and 

• reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit 
process and implementing a policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services as described 
further below. 

The Group’s external auditors meet directly with the Audit Committee in advance of full year and interim results and on 
other occasions as required. During the year ended 31 March 2014 the Committee met on three occasions. 

The Audit Committee also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit process, including the issue of auditor independence.  

The Audit Committee continues to consider that, given the size of the Company, an internal audit function is not 
currently required. 

Nomination Committee 
Lord Grade of Yarmouth, Chairman 
Steven Underwood  
Ruth Prior  

The Nomination Committee’s nomination duties are to make recommendations to the Board and on all proposed 
appointments of Directors, to review succession plans for the Group and to review Board effectiveness.  

During the year under review the Board appointed one Non-Executive Director: Thomas Allison; and one Executive 
Director: Christopher Naisby. In the case of Thomas Allison, this appointment was made through the agreement with 
Peel Acquisitions to supply the Company with up to five Non-Executive Directors. In the case of the Executive Director, 
Christopher Naisby was appointed as a result of an internal promotion. 

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Committee met on two occasions. 

Remuneration Committee 
Steven Underwood, Chairman 
Lord Grade of Yarmouth 
Ruth Prior  

A detailed report on the Remuneration Committee’s activities is contained within the Directors’ remuneration report. 
The Committee met on five occasions during the year ended 31 March 2014. 
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Internal control 
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and has reviewed its effectiveness 
over the year. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems and has found the 
systems to be effective. The internal control systems implemented at the Company for the year under review, and 
continuing, is structured in order that the Group’s risks are effectively identified, evaluated and managed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, reassurance that there is no material misstatement or loss. 

The main elements of the Group’s internal control system, including risk identification, are as follows: 

Board 
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for internal control procedures with an organisational structure that 
supports clearly defined authority levels. The primary responsibility for the operation of the internal control systems lies 
with the Executive Directors and the Executive Management Team. Board meetings include consideration of strategic, 
financial, operational and compliance issues which are endorsed through assessment by the Audit Committee of the 
effectiveness of the internal, financial and operating control environment. 

Operating Company controls 
The identification and mitigation of major business risks is the responsibility of the Executive Directors and Executive 
Management Team, who have ongoing operational responsibility. A part of this remit includes the maintenance and 
regular review of procedures to identify and mitigate potential areas of risk supported by the Group’s in-house Legal 
Counsel in addition to external adviser guidance. This process and review also ensures that procedures comply with Group 
policies and guidelines. 

Authorisation procedures 
The authorisation procedures in respect of matters such as purchase commitments, capital expenditure, investment limits 
and treasury transactions are clearly defined within the Group. 

Insurance 
The Company has granted an indemnity to all its Directors against liability brought by third parties, subject to the 
conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006. The continuing adequacy of insurance cover for the Group is evaluated 
on an annual basis and the Board concluded that the insurance cover for the Group is currently adequate. 

Financial reporting 
In advance of each financial year, the Board approves a comprehensive budget incorporating a detailed appraisal of 
underlying assumptions and business risks. The Board is provided with financial information on a monthly basis, detailing 
historical and forecast results against budget and prior year, incorporating monthly and year to date trading results, 
statement of financial position and summary notes, cash flow statements, capital expenditure, levels of indebtedness 
and covenant compliance. In addition, monthly Board meetings include an appraisal of current forecasts, treasury policy, 
financial resources, borrowing facilities and hedging strategy. The Executive Management Team is also provided with 
key financial data on a monthly basis to assess performance against budgets and provide explanations on the results 
to the Board. 

Treasury management 
The treasury function is managed in accordance with guidance approved by the Board, and procedures are regularly 
reviewed to ensure that they remain suitable. Appropriate segregation of duties is in place and significant transactions are 
authorised by the Board. Financial reports and analysis are provided to the Board on a monthly basis as noted in Financial 
reporting above. 
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Internal control continued 
Shareholder communication 
The Company maintains a strong communication strategy with its shareholders. The Company also communicates 
regularly with the employees of the Group. All Company announcements are posted on the investor relations website, 
www.pinewoodgroup.com/investor-relations, as they are released. The Company’s dedicated investor relations website 
includes historic financial and share price information, as well as a link to ‘About us’, which provides information on the 
business and the services and facilities available. 

Additionally, the Annual General Meeting to be held this year on 29 September 2014 will provide shareholders with a 
further opportunity to meet and question the Company’s Board, and to review the results and business during the year 
ended 31 March 2014. 

By order of the Board 

Andrew M. Smith 
Company Secretary 

25 June 2014
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Directors’ report 

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

An indication of likely future developments in the business of the Company is included within the Strategic report. 

Information about the use of financial instruments by the Company is given in Note 28 to the financial statements. 

Result and dividends 
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £5.4m (year ended 31 March 2013: £1.8m). 

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 1.9p per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 1.5p) for approval at the Annual General Meeting, which, together with the interim dividend 
of 0.6p (year ended 31 March 2013: 0.5p), makes a total dividend for the year of 2.5p (year ended 31 March 2013: 2.0p). 

Directors and their interests 
The Directors who served throughout the year, except as noted, and their interests in the share capital of the Company 
were as follows: 

 

Number 
of ordinary 

shares at 
31 March 

2014 
and 2013 

Lord Grade of Yarmouth, CBE 17,500
Ivan Dunleavy –
Nicholas Smith –
Andrew M. Smith  –
Steven Christian  10,000
Christopher Naisby (appointed 30 September 2013) –
Steven Underwood –
Neil Lees –
Ruth Prior  –
Thomas Allison (appointed 29 April 2013) 8,000
Mark Senior (resigned 29 April 2013) –

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 September 2014, Lord Grade of Yarmouth and Steven 
Underwood will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with the 
Company’s Articles of Association, Christopher Naisby will offer himself for election as he has been appointed to the 
Board since the Company’s last Annual General Meeting. 
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Substantial shareholdings 
At 31 March 2014, the beneficial interests amounting to 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, 
as notified to the Company, comprised: 

 

Number of 
ordinary 10p 

shares 

Percentage of 
issued ordinary 

share capital 

Goodweather Investment Management Limited 28,683,236 58.05%
Warren James Holdings Limited 13,186,148 26.69%
Treasury, a Department of the Isle of Man Government 4,891,582 9.9%

No holder of shares in the Company has any special rights with regard to control of the Company and all issued shares are 
fully paid. 

Save as set out below, there are no agreements known to the Company between holders of shares in the Company which 
may result in restrictions on the transfer of shares or on voting rights in relation to the Company. 

In connection with the cancellation of the listing of the Company’s shares on the Official List and the removal of such 
shares from trading on the main market of the London Stock Exchange and the admission of the shares to trading on 
AIM which took place on 23 July 2012 (“Admission”), each of Peel Holdings Limited (parent Company of Goodweather 
Investment Management Limited) and Warren James Holdings Limited have given irrevocable undertakings that provide, 
inter alia: 

• in the case of Peel, that it will: (i) not acquire shares in the Company for two years from Admission (subject to certain 
exceptions including pursuant to a general offer or scheme of arrangement or to maintain an aggregate holding of 50% 
of the Company’s issued share capital or at any time with N+1 Singer’s consent); (ii) vote in favour of the appointment 
of one additional Non-Executive Independent Director and take all measures to ensure that the number of Peel Directors 
on the Board shall be less than the number of Independent Directors (being the Directors of the Company who are not 
affiliates of Peel or Warren James, including both Executive and Non-Executive Directors), and (iii) not vote in favour of 
any delisting from AIM for a period of three years from Admission; and  

• in the case of Warren James Holdings Limited, that it will: (i) not acquire shares in the Company for two years from 
Admission (subject to certain exceptions including pursuant to a general offer or scheme of arrangement or to maintain 
an aggregate holding of 25.1% of the Company’s issued share capital or at any time with N+1 Singer’s consent); and 
(ii) not vote in favour of any delisting from AIM for a period of three years from Admission. 

Going concern 
As outlined within the Strategic report on page 15 the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going 
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements, as there are no material uncertainties related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.  
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Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors 
The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ report are listed on pages 24 and 25. 

Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the Group’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms that at the date of 
approval of this Annual Report: 

(1) so far as they are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Group’s auditors are unaware; and 

(2) they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information. 

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies 
Act 2006. 

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them will be 
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

By order of the Board 

Andrew M. Smith 
Company Secretary 

25 June 2014
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Remuneration Committee 
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”) to advise it on appropriate policies and 
procedures in determining suitable remuneration packages for Executive Directors and senior management. 

The Committee’s responsibilities include the monitoring, review and recommendation to the Board on the Group’s broad 
policy for the remuneration of all Executive Directors and to determine, and thereafter review at least annually, the 
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors including basic salary, pension arrangements and annual and long-term 
incentives and as appropriate, make recommendations in respect of other senior management. In addition, the 
Committee reviews the corporate targets and objectives relating to the Executive Directors’ compensation, including 
an evaluation of their performance.  

General policy 
The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide remuneration packages to Executive Directors and senior management 
which align their interests to those of shareholders whilst retaining appropriate flexibility to cater for potential future 
changes in remuneration policy best practice and the environment in which the Group operates. Group policy aims to 
provide competitive rewards based on the achievement of recognised short-term and long-term performance-based 
targets, recognising that the value of awards to Executive Directors and employees should be commensurate with 
individual responsibilities within the Group. 

The Committee has concluded that the remuneration policy remains valid for 2014. 

Components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration 
The key components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration are: 

Basic salary and benefits in kind 
The basic salary for each Executive Director reflects the Committee’s assessment of performance, responsibilities and 
market value for comparable positions, as guided by independent advice.  

Benefits in kind include provision of a car allowance, pension, medical and life insurance and permanent health insurance. 

Annual bonus 
The Executive Directors participate in an annual bonus scheme, which is linked to the achievement of annual financial 
targets set by the Committee, based on the Group’s budget approved prior to the commencement of the financial year.  

Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) 
The Executive Directors, and certain members of the Executive Management Team, participate in a LTIP scheme where 
contributions will be made by the Company to the scheme over a five-year period, commencing 1 April 2012, providing 
the target EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) is achieved in each of the relevant years. 
The first payment from the LTIP to employees will be made up of the cumulative award after three years.  

In the event that each of the EBITDA milestones is achieved, the value of the LTIP scheme at the end of the fifth year will 
be £5m. 
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Components of the Executive Directors’ remuneration continued 
Pension arrangements 
For Executive Directors only basic salary is pensionable. All Executive Directors are eligible to become members of the 
personal pension plan arranged by the Group, which is a defined contribution scheme.  

Executive Directors’ service agreements 
The Executive Directors have rolling service agreements that are subject to 12 months’ notice, which the Committee 
regards as appropriate in the event of termination of an Executive Director’s service agreement. The service agreements 
of the Executive Directors (other than for Nicholas Smith) specify the compensation which must be paid to the Executive 
Director where the Company terminates the agreement either without notice or without cause, which is limited to salary 
and benefits payable during the Executive Director’s notice period (salary only in the case of Andrew Smith and 
Christopher Naisby). The service agreement of Nicholas Smith provides that the Company may opt to terminate the 
agreement with notice or a payment in lieu of notice, and provides for inherent mitigation.  

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration  
The Chairman is appointed for an initial term of one year and thereafter on a rolling basis with notice to terminate of six 
months (or immediately by the Company in certain circumstances, such as breach of terms). The Non-Executive 
Directors, other than Ruth Prior, are appointed for a rolling term of 12 months, subject to normal provisions of 
appointment at the Company’s first Annual General Meeting following their appointment and retirement by rotation with 
immediate right of termination by the Company in specific circumstances, including breach of terms. Ruth Prior is 
appointed for an initial term of three years, unless terminated earlier by, and at the discretion of, either party upon one 
month’s written notice, subject to retirement by rotation with immediate right of termination by the Company in specific 
circumstances, including breach of terms. Retirements by rotation are noted in the Directors’ report. The appointment and 
reappointment of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are matters reserved for the full Board. 

With the exception of the Chairman and Ruth Prior, the Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receive any fees. 
The fees of the Chairman and Ruth Prior are determined by the Remuneration Committee, reflecting market practice and 
levels of service, together with their contribution of time and expertise in support of the Group, and are reviewed 
annually. The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for pension scheme membership and do not 
participate in any of the Group’s bonus or LTIP.  

The Company has entered into an agreement with Peel Acquisitions, pursuant to which Peel Acquisitions has agreed to 
supply the Company with Non-Executive Directors (currently: Steven Underwood, Thomas Allison and Neil Lees). As 
consideration for the supply of the Non-Executive Directors, the Company has agreed to pay a fee of £40,000 pa for each 
Non-Executive Director that is supplied (exclusive of VAT where applicable). Either party may terminate the agreement by 
giving three months’ prior written notice. 
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Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2014 (unaudited) 
 Year ended 31 March 2014 Year ended

 31 March 2013
Total 

remuneration
£  

Basic salary 
and fees

 £ 

Benefits
 in kind 

£ 

Annual
 bonus

 £ 

Pension 
contributions 

 £ 

Total 
remuneration

 £ 

Chairman  
Lord Grade of Yarmouth 105,000 n/a n/a n/a 105,000 105,000
Executive Directors  
Ivan Dunleavy  408,615 10,260 187,411 49,380 655,666 408,773
Nicholas Smith  238,192 7,198 135,182 28,774 409,346 262,293
Andrew M. Smith 151,421 5,275 34,410 12,080 203,186 161,373
Steve Christian* 40,000 nil nil nil 40,000 16,667
Christopher Naisby** 120,192 4,194 35,579 9,615 169,580 nil
Non-Executive Directors  
Steven Underwood nil nil nil nil nil nil
Neil Lees nil nil nil nil nil nil
Ruth Prior 42,000 1,015 nil nil 43,015 15,708
Thomas Allison nil nil nil nil nil nil

* The Group has a consultancy agreement for services related to the Isle of Man Investment Advisory Agreement with Gasworks Media Limited, a company 
incorporated in the Isle of Man, whose sole shareholder, Steve Christian, is also an Executive Director of the Group. The total value of the transactions, 
including reimbursement of expenses, during the year was £336,000. See Note 27 for further details. 

** The remuneration for Christopher Naisby shown above is total remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2014, including the period before his appointment 
to the Board on 30 September 2013. 

On behalf of the Board 

Steven Underwood 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 

25 June 2014 
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and regulations. 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors 
have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union and the parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors 
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.  

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and 
explained in the financial statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will 
continue in business. 

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors: 

• properly select and apply accounting policies; 

• present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and 
understandable information;  

• provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users 
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and 
financial performance; and 

• make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and 
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 
and other irregularities. 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
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Responsibility statement  
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge: 

• the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair 
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the 
consolidation taken as a whole; 

• the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the 
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the 
principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and 

• the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable, and provide the 
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy. 

By order of the Board 

Andrew M. Smith 
Company Secretary 

25 June 2014 
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Independent auditor’s report  
to the members of Pinewood Shepperton plc 
 

We have audited the Group financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 31 March 2014, which 
comprise the Group income statement, the Group statement of other comprehensive income, the Group statement 
of financial position, the Group statement of cash flows, the Group reconciliation of movement in net debt, the Group 
statement of changes in Equity and the related Notes 1 to 28. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 
in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the 
European Union. 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on 
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the Group financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its profit for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
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Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB 
As explained in Note 1 to the Group financial statements, the Group, in addition to complying with its legal obligation 
to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 

In our opinion the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the 
Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the Group financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 
if, in our opinion: 

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 
31 March 2014. 

Christopher Robertson (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Manchester, UK 

25 June 2014 
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 Notes 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013*
 (restated) 

£000 

Revenue – continuing operations 3 64,058 54,976 
Cost of sales   (48,129) (38,744)
Gross profit   15,929 16,232
Selling and distribution expenses   (1,791) (1,699)
Administrative expenses:   
– Recurring activities in the ordinary course of business  (8,630) (7,150)
– Exceptional expenses 7 (548) (2,997)
Total administrative expenses  (9,178) (10,147)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (76) (600)
Operating profit  4 4,884 3,786
Comprising:  
– Operating profit from Media Services activities, before exceptional items  9,220 8,929
– Operating loss from Media Investment in respect of Film Production Companies  (3,463) (1,522)
– Operating loss from Media Investment activities, excluding Film 
 Production Companies  (325) (624)
– Exceptional expenses 7 (548) (2,997)
  4,884 3,786
Share of results of joint ventures 8 1,144 801
Finance costs 9 (2,436) (3,268)
Profit before tax  3,592 1,319
Current corporation tax expense  (1,292) (1,545)
UK Film tax relief from Film Production Companies  3,085 1,522
Deferred tax (charge)/credit   (33) 472
Total tax credit 10 1,760 449
Profit for the year   5,352 1,768
  
Attributable to:  
Equity holders of the parent   5,352 1,768
  
Earnings per share  
Basic and diluted for result for the year 11 10.8p 3.6p

* Please see Note 8 Interests in joint ventures for further details of the prior year restatement. 

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group statement of other comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 

 

 

Year ended
 31 March

 2014
 

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013*
 (restated) 

£000 

Profit for the year 5,352 1,768
 
Net loss on cash flow hedges – (281)
Transfer of cash flow hedge interest to income statement 328 774
Taxation through income statement – (92)
Taxation through statement of changes in equity – 3
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 328 404
   
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5,680 2,172
 
Attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent 5,680 2,172

* Please see Note 8 Interests in joint ventures for further details of the prior year restatement. 

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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and 31 March 2013 
 

 

 Notes 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013*
 (restated) 

£000 

Assets   
Non-current assets  
Property, plant and equipment 12 118,227 106,363 
Investment property 13 5,929 6,062 
Intangible assets 14 5,604 5,604 
Long-term assets 15 871 369 
Investment in joint ventures 8 7,394 7,143
    138,025 125,541
Current assets  
Inventories 16 312 459 
Trade receivables 17 11,794 6,105 
Prepayments and other receivables 18 4,660 1,954 
Cash and cash equivalents 19 775 –
   17,541 8,518
Total assets   155,566 134,059
Equity and liabilities  
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent  
Share capital 20 4,941 4,941 
Share premium 20 48,718 48,718 
Capital redemption reserve 20 135 135 
Merger reserve 20 348 348 
Fair value of cash flow hedge 20 – (328)
Retained earnings   30,570 26,255
Total equity   84,712 80,069
Non-current liabilities  
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 40,939 32,211 
Derivative financial instruments 22 175 –
Deferred tax liabilities 10 760 727 
   41,874 32,938
Current liabilities  
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 – 905
Derivative financial instruments 22 15 –
Trade and other payables 23 28,466 18,165 
Provisions 24 499 1,538
Tax payable  – 444
    28,980 21,052
Total liabilities   70,854 53,990
Total equity and liabilities   155,566 134,059 
* Please see Note 8 Interests in joint ventures for further details of the prior year restatement. 

The financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc, Company number: 03889552, were approved and authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014. They were signed on its behalf by: 

Christopher Naisby, FCCA 
Finance Director 

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 Notes 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013*
 (restated) 

£000 

Cash flow from operating activities:  
Profit before tax   3,592 1,319
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:  
Exceptional items 7 – 2,091
Depreciation and amortisation 4 4,458 3,556
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 76 600
Share of results of joint ventures 8 (1,144) (801)
Finance costs 9 2,436 3,268 
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital  9,418 10,033
Increase in trade and other receivables  (6,843) (3,336)
Decrease in inventories 16 147 27 
Increase in trade and other payables  12,353 4,710
Decrease in provisions 24 (1,039) –
Cash generated from operations  14,036 11,434
Finance costs paid  (2,102) (2,680)
Corporation tax received in respect of FPC activity  2,584 1,198
Corporation tax paid  (2,787) (296)
Net cash flow from operating activities  11,731 9,656
Cash flow used in investing activities:   
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (18,389) (9,282)
Additions to long-term assets 15 (591) (63)
Investment in joint ventures 8 (1,038) –
Distributions from joint ventures 8 1,931 801
Net cash flow used in investing activities  (18,087) (8,544)
Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities:  
Proceeds from the issue of shares 20 – 5,087
Dividends paid 11 (1,037) (247)
Repayment of asset financing obligations  (1,160) (570)
Proceeds from asset financing  2,233 1,849
Repayment of bank borrowings 21 (5,000) (37,000)
Proceeds from bank borrowings 21 13,000 30,000
Payment of loan issue fees  – (1,285)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities  8,036 (2,166) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,680 (1,054)
(Overdraft)/cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year  (905) 149 
Cash and cash equivalents/(overdraft) at the end of the year 19 775 (905) 
* Please see Note 8 Interests in joint ventures for further details of the prior year restatement. 

Included within the cash and cash equivalents balance is a total of £1,426,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £1,634,000) 
which is unavailable for general use. Please see Note 19. 

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 Notes 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013*
 (restated) 

£000 

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt     
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,680 (1,054)
Repayment of bank borrowings  5,000 37,000
Proceeds from bank borrowings  (13,000) (30,000)
Repayments of asset financing obligations  1,160 570 
Proceeds from asset financing  (2,233) (1,849)
Loan issue costs  – 1,249
Amortisation of loan issue costs  (286) (675)
Movement in fair value of cash flow hedge  631 342 
Movement in net debt  (7,048) 5,583
Net debt at the start of the year  (33,116) (38,699)
Net debt at the end of the year  (40,164) (33,116)
  
Attributable to:   
Cash and cash equivalents/(overdraft) 19 775 (905) 
Non-current liabilities   
Revolving credit facility loan  21 (38,000) (30,000)
Asset financing 21 (3,665) (2,592)
Unamortised loan issue costs 21 726 1,012 
Fair value of cash flow hedge 21 – (631)
Interest bearing loans and borrowings   (40,939) (32,211)
Net debt at end of year  (40,164) (33,116)

* Please see Note 8 Interests in joint ventures for further details of the prior year restatement. 

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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From 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

 

Share  
capital 

£000 

Share
 premium

£000 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve
£000 

Merger
 reserve

£000 

Fair value of 
cash flow 

hedge  
reserve 

£000 

Retained 
earnings

£000 

Total 
equity
£000 

At 1 April 2013 4,941 48,718 135 348 (328) 26,255 80,069
Profit for the year – – – – – 5,352 5,352
Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax – – – – 328 – 328
Total comprehensive 
income, net of tax  –  –  –  – 328 5,352 5,680
Equity dividends (Note 11) – – – – – (1,037) (1,037)
At 31 March 2014 4,941 48,718 135 348 – 30,570 84,712

From 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 

 

Share  
capital 
£000 

Share
 premium

£000 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve
£000 

Merger
 reserve

£000 

Fair value of 
cash flow 

hedge  
reserve 

£000 

Retained 
earnings

£000 

Total 
equity
£000 

At 1 April 2012 4,725  43,847 135 348 (732) 24,734 73,057 
Profit for the year – – – – – 1,768 1,768
Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax – – – – 404 – 404
Total comprehensive 
income, net of tax  –  –  –  – 404 1,768 2,172
Equity dividends (Note 11) – – – – – (247) (247)
New shares issued (Note 20) 216 4,871 – – – – 5,087
At 31 March 2013 4,941 48,718 135 348 (328) 26,255 80,069

The Notes on pages 47 to 93 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 47 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements at 31 March 2014 
 
 

 

1. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS 
The Group financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 31 March 2014 were authorised for issue 
by the Board of the Directors on 25 June 2014 and the statement of financial position was signed on the Board’s behalf 
by the Finance Director. Pinewood Shepperton plc is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and 
Wales. The registered office is located at Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SL0 0NH, UK. 
The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange. 

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for year ended 
31 March 2014. The Group’s financial statements are also consistent with IFRSs as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out in Note 2.  

2. Accounting policies 
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc and all of its subsidiaries have been prepared in 
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union (“EU”) as they apply to the financial statements of the Group 
for the year ended 31 March 2014 and applied in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.  

The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2014. The Group financial statements are presented in UK sterling and all values are rounded to the 
nearest thousand pounds (£000), except when otherwise indicated. The Group financial statements have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial liabilities 
(including derivative instruments) to fair value. 

Going concern 
In assessing the going concern basis, the Directors considered the Group’s business activities, the financial position of the 
Group and the Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies. The Group meets its day-to-day working capital 
requirements through its bank facilities. The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible 
changes in trading performance and economic uncertainty, show that the Group should be able to operate within the 
level of its current facilities. Although the Group is in a net current liability position of £11.4m, the Group has £17.8m 
of undrawn committed loan facilities in place. The Group also has £8.3m of asset financing available to be drawn upon 
including £1.6m of a pre-approved facility. The Directors are confident these undrawn debt facilities provide sufficient 
headroom to support continued trading. The Directors therefore consider that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and as such it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis 
in preparing these financial statements. 

The Group’s assessment of going concern is explained further in the Strategic report on page 16 of the Annual Report and 
further information on the Group’s borrowings is given in Note 21. 

Basis of consolidation 
The Group consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc and its 
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013. All intercompany transactions, balances, income and expenses are 
eliminated in full on consolidation. All subsidiaries are consolidated for the financial year ending 31 March 2014, regardless 
of the individual entities, statutory reporting date. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated 
from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the 
consolidated financial statements include the results for the part of the reporting year during which Pinewood Shepperton 
plc has control. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year with the exception of: 

• a change from hedge accounting under International Accounting Standard 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement (“IAS 39”) to reporting the movement in fair value through profit or loss as permitted in IAS 39;  

• early adopted standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosure; and 

• newly applicable standards effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosure 
In May 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, 
comprising IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements (“IFRS 10”), IFRS 11 Joint arrangements (“IFRS 11”), IFRS 12 
Disclosures of interests in other entities (“IFRS 12”), IAS 27 (revised 2011) Separate financial statements (“IAS 27”) and 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011) (“IAS 28”). Subsequent to the issue of these 
standards, amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the first-time 
application of the standards.  

In the current year, the Group has early-adopted these standards and for the first time has applied IFRS 10, 11 and 
12 and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011), together with the amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 regarding the transitional 
guidance. IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) has also been applied and it deals only with separate financial statements. 

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below. 

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 
In IFRS 10, the term ‘control’ is redefined. If one entity controls another entity, the parent Company shall include the 
subsidiary in full in its consolidated financial statements. Under the new definition, control is established if the potential 
parent entity has power over the potential subsidiary (investee) as a result of voting rights or other rights and actual 
circumstances, is exposed or has rights to positive or negative variable returns from its involvement with the investee, 
and above all has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect significantly the amount of its returns. 

There has been no material impact from the adoption of IFRS 10 as, with the exception of joint ventures discussed below, 
the Company holds 100% ownership interests only. 

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 
IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and provides for a more realistic reflection of joint arrangements 
by focusing on the rights and obligations of the arrangement, rather than its legal form. There are two types of joint 
arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where a joint operator has rights to the assets 
and obligations relating to the arrangement and hence accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. 
Joint ventures arise where the joint operator has rights to the net assets of the arrangement and hence equity accounts 
for its interest.  

Under IFRS 11, the proportional consolidation of joint controlled entities is no longer possible and equity method of 
accounting is required. Following the early adoption of IFRS 11, the Group’s joint control interests in Shepperton Studios 
Property Partnership, Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited, Pinewood Studio Berlin Film Services GmbH, 
Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette LLC have been accounted for under the equity method and prior year 
information has been restated accordingly. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosure continued 
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements continued 
The adoption of IFRS 11 has materially impacted the Group financial statements and the comparative figures for 31 March 
2013 have been restated accordingly and as required under the transition provisions. Under the transition provisions, the 
initial investment in the joint venture is measured as the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities 
that were previously proportionally consolidated. The transition provisions state the standard is only required to be applied 
at the beginning of the immediately preceding period to that in which it is adopted (rather than the beginning of the 
earliest period presented). After initial recognition, investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity 
method in accordance with IAS 28 (as amended in 2011). 

The impact of adopting IFRS 11 is fully detailed in Note 8. 

IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities 
IFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for interests in other entities. This standard requires a much wider range 
of disclosures than previously required by the rules set out in IAS 27, IAS 28 and IAS 31.  

The application of IFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
(see Note 27). 

Other newly applicable accounting standards 
The following standards are now effective but have not had a material impact on the Group’s financial statements: 

IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 
The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCI and introduced new terminology for the 
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Items that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss 
at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) must now be presented separately from items 
that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and there has been no impact on the Group’s 
financial position or performance.  

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change 
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when 
fair value is required or permitted.  

IFRS 13 requires prospective application for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013. The Standard 
includes specific transitional provisions such that the disclosure requirements need not be applied to comparative 
information provided. 

In accordance with these transitional provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures required by IFRS 13 for 
the 2013 comparative period. Other than the additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any material 
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures 
The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures – Offsetting Financial assets and financial liabilities for the 
first time in the current year. The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to disclose information about rights of offset and 
related arrangements for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement. 

As the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements in place, the application of the amendments has had no impact 
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.  
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRS 2009–2011 
These annual improvements addressed six issues in the 2009–2011 reporting cycle and included changes to: 

• IFRS 1, First time adoption; 

• IAS 1, Financial statement presentation; 

• IAS 16, Property plant and equipment; 

• IAS 32, Financial instruments; Presentation; and 

• IAS 34, Interim financial reporting. 

Adoption of these amendments has not had a material impact on the Group. 

Standards in issue but not yet effective 
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not 
been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been 
adopted by the EU): 

• IFRS 9, Financial instruments. 

IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments but its adoption is not expected to have 
a material impact on the Group’s financial statements. 

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material 
impact on the Group. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
Interests in joint ventures 
The Group has interests in joint ventures which are joint arrangements. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby 
two or more parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.  

The Group previously recognised its joint venture interests using the proportionate consolidation method. Adoption of 
IFRS 11, as outlined above, now requires the Group to account for joint ventures under the equity method. Under the 
equity method, a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated financial statement of financial position at costs 
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the 
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of the joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture, 
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are only recognised to the extent that 
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. 

When a Group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with 
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint 
venture that are not related to the Group. 

Foreign currency translation 
The functional and presentation currency of Pinewood Shepperton plc and its subsidiaries is UK sterling (UK £). Foreign 
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
transactions. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at 
exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
currencies other than the functional currency are recognised in the consolidated income statement. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Summary of significant accounting policies continued 
Revenue recognition  
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable, net of discounts, rebates, 
VAT and other sales taxes or duty. The Group has assessed its revenue arrangements and has concluded that it is acting 
as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. Where a contract spans an accounting cut-off date, the value of the 
revenue recognised is the time proportion of the total value of the contract completed by the cut-off date. The following 
specific recognition criteria apply: 

Media services: 

• Film customers utilise services for a period of time. Film revenues are also derived from international agreements to 
provide sales and marketing services. Revenue is recognised as the Group earns the right to consideration for the 
service provided and this is time-apportioned and earned as time elapses. 

• Television revenue is derived from the provision of services and is recognised on a time-apportioned basis in relation to 
the television production process. 

• Media Hub revenue, which includes revenue from investment property, is derived from customers contracting to use the 
Group’s facilities for a period of time. Revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement. 

Media investment: 

• External investment advisory revenue is derived from the provision of services on a per film investment basis, with 
revenue from an annual management fee recognised on a straight-line basis over the course of the year. 

• Film Production Companies revenue relates to the funding provided from the various financiers (excluding loans against 
tax credit, which are recognised as a liability on the balance sheet). Revenue recognised is the proportion of completion 
of the relevant project. 

Film investments 
Film investments are classified as investments at fair value with any impairment in the investment expensed in the 
income statement. The Company reviews the fair value at least annually. Any net changes in fair value are recognised 
in the income statement. 

Operating profit 
Operating profit is stated after charging exceptional items but before the share of results of associated and finance costs. 

Tax 
Deferred tax 
Deferred corporation tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the statement of financial 
position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred corporation tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences: 

• except where the deferred corporation tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures 
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Tax continued 
Deferred tax continued 
Deferred corporation tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax 
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised 
except: 

• where the deferred corporation tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred corporation tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred corporation tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred corporation tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

Corporation tax 
Corporation tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in other comprehensive income and the 
statement of changes in equity and not in the income statement. 

Film tax credits 
Film tax credits are recognised in line with the cost incurred over the period of a film project. Where the rate of 
expenditure incurred is not proportionate to the rate of qualifying expenditure, the difference in film tax credits is 
accrued or deferred on the balance sheet. 

Value added tax 
The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except: 

• where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 
in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 
item as applicable; and 

• receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included. 

Pensions and other post-employment benefits 
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. Contributions are charged to the income statement as they become 
payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes.  

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand. For the purpose of 
the Group statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as described above, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts.  
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are 
measured initially at the fair values of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial 
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The loan issue costs 
are amortised in the income statement over the remaining maturity of the loans at a constant carrying amount and 
are reviewed for changes in circumstances that may indicate that the loans will not be held to maturity.  

Derivative financial instruments 
The Group has interest rate swaps to hedge against risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. Derivatives are initially 
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair 
value at each balance sheet date. The Group reports the movement in fair value through profit or loss as permitted 
International Accounting Standard 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”). 

The fair values of the interest rate swap contracts are determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. 
The Group designates its interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges, being hedges against exposure to variability in the cash 
flows of highly probable transactions arising from the interest rate risk on the Group’s external borrowings.  

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value 
is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity 
of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other 
derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation.  

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is 
considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benefit expected to be received under it. 

Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangements 
at the inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased 
item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased item, or if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, using the effective 
interest rate method. Finance charges are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis.  

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Leases continued 
Leases, where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset, are classified as 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

Operating lease income is recognised as Media Hub revenue in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost to the Group less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss. 
Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and 
includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended. Depreciation is calculated on all 
property, plant and equipment, other than land, from the time they are available for use on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life as follows: 

Freehold buildings   – 50 years 
Freehold improvements   – 25 years 
Fixtures, fittings and equipment  – 3 to 10 years 
Leasehold improvements  – shorter of 25 years or the term of the lease 

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated. 

The carrying value of freehold land and buildings within ‘Property, plant and equipment’ in the statement of financial 
position is based on external valuations undertaken by an independent firm of Chartered Surveyors in February 2000 
(as amended in January 2001) and November 2000, on each occasion to establish the fair values of the Pinewood Studios 
and Shepperton Studios businesses acquired. Subsequent to these valuations, which established the cost to the Group 
of freehold land and buildings, additions, disposals and depreciation have been recorded in line with Group accounting 
policies. 

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable, and is written down immediately to the recoverable amount. Useful 
lives and residual values are reviewed annually and where adjustments are required, these are made prospectively. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising in derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included 
in the income statement in the year the item is derecognised. 

Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of certain investment capital 
expenditure projects that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, or sale, are 
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. 

The Group has capitalised borrowing costs for all eligible assets where development or construction was commenced 
on or after 1 January 2007. No charges have been made for borrowing costs incurred prior to this date that have 
been expensed. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Investment property 
As defined by IAS 40 Investment property (“IAS 40”), investment property is property held to earn rental income and/or 
for capital appreciation. Assets classified as investment property are carried at cost (including transaction costs) less 
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment in value, and exclude the costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
an investment property. The depreciation policies for investment property are in accordance with the Group depreciation 
policy, as defined within the ‘Property, plant and equipment’ accounting policy. In accordance with IAS 40, the Group has 
determined the fair value of assets classified as investment. The key assumptions used in arriving at the fair value and the 
fair value are contained in Note 13, ‘Investment property’. 

Impairment of assets 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share price for the publicly traded Pinewood Shepperton plc or other fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired asset. An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Group estimates assets, or CGUs, recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
income statement. After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over the remaining useful life. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the 
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial 
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment 
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the related cash-generating unit monitored by 
management. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, including 
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, when identified, are capitalised at cost and subsequently amortised over their useful economic life. 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Long-term assets 
Costs incurred in the establishment of long-term agreements are capitalised on the statement of financial position and 
categorised as long-term assets. 

These costs are reviewed at least annually for any impairment in their carrying value and once the long-term agreement 
becomes operational the costs are amortised over the term of the agreement. 

Impairment costs and amortisation are expensed to the Group income statement. 

Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all costs incurred in bringing each 
product to its present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling price less any 
estimated further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

Trade and other receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoice value and recoverable amount.  

An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off 
when identified and are determined using business knowledge and individual circumstances specific to each customer. 

Exceptional items of expense 
The Group discloses as exceptional items on the face of the income statement those material items of expense which, 
because of the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate disclosure to allow 
users of the financial statements to better understand the elements of financial performance in the year, so as to 
facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess better trends in financial performance. 

Dividends 
The equity transaction is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established. 

Share issue costs 
Costs directly attributable to the raising of equity are charged to the share premium account.  

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
Estimates 
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect reported amounts at the end of the year.  

Judgements 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date are 
discussed below. 

Impairment of goodwill 
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2014 was £5,604,000 (31 March 2013: £5,604,000), and wholly relates to 
the Media Services cash-generating unit. The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. 
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated.  
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions continued
Impairment of goodwill continued 
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the Media 
Services cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those 
cash flows. The cash flows are derived from the Board-approved budget for the next year and the Board-approved long-
range plan for the Media Services segment only, and do not include non-cash, generating assets, any activities that the 
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the Media 
Services cash-generating unit. This calculation is sensitive to the discount rate used for the calculation of present values 
of cash flows.  

The key assumptions used to determine the value in use are further explained in Note 14. 

Going concern 
Information on the Group’s risks, management and exposure are set out in the ‘Key business risks’ section of the Annual 
Report and Note 28 ‘Financial risk management, objectives and policies’ of these accounts. The Directors, having made 
appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in the operational business for the 
foreseeable future and have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

3. Segment information and revenue analysis 
The Group identifies its operating segments based on a combination of factors, including the nature and type of service 
provided and differences in regulatory environment. Operating segments are aggregated where there is a high degree 
of consistency across these factors, and the segments have similar economic characteristics. Operating segments are 
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. 

The Group has determined it has two reportable segments, Media Services, which provides studio and related services to 
the film, television and wider creative industries, and Media Investment, which provides content investment and 
production services, principally to the film industry. 

The accounting policies of all operating segments are the same as those described in Note 2, ‘Basis of preparation and 
accounting policies’. 

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current 
market price. 
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3. Segment information and revenue analysis continued 
Segment data for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 (restated) is presented below: 

Revenue: 

Year 
ended

31 March 
2014

£000 

Year 
ended

31 March
2013 

(restated)
£000 

Media Services:    
External Film 37,390 35,203
Intersegment Film 1,215 466
External Television 6,184 5,239
External Media Hub 5,575 5,606
  50,364 46,514
Media Investment: 
Film Production Companies 14,037 8,736
External investment advisory 402 192
Investment recoupment 270 –
Other income and commissions 200 –
  14,909 8,928
Total segmental revenue 65,273 55,442
Elimination of intersegment revenue (1,215) (466)
Group revenue 64,058 54,976
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3. Segment information and revenue analysis continued 

Income statement: 

Year ended 
31 March 2014 

 
 

Year ended 
31 March 2013 

(restated) 

 

Media
Services

£000 

Media 
Investment

£000 

Total

£000 

Media 
Services 

£000 

Media 
Investment

£000 

Total

£000 

Segment revenue – total 50,364 14,909 65,273 46,514 8,928 55,442
Cost of sales (31,393) (16,736) (48,129) (28,484) (10,260) (38,744)
Elimination of intersegment revenue (1,215) – (1,215) (466)  – (466)
Gross profit/(loss) 17,756 (1,827) 15,929 17,564 (1,332) 16,232
Selling and distribution expenses (1,791) – (1,791) (1,699)  – (1,699)
Administrative expenses:  
Recurring in the ordinary course 
of business (6,669) (1,961) (8,630) (6,336) (814) (7,150)
Exceptional expenses (548) – (548) (2,997)  – (2,997)
Total administrative expenses (7,217) (1,961) (9,178) (9,333) (814) (10,147)
Loss on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment (76) – (76) (600)  – (600)
Operating profit/(loss) 8,672 (3,788) 4,884 5,932 (2,146) 3,786
Operating profit/(loss) before 
exceptional items 9,220 (3,788) 5,432 8,929  (2,146) 6,783 
Share of results of joint ventures 1,144 – 1,144 801  – 801
Finance costs (2,203) (233) (2,436) (3,131) (137) (3,268)
Profit/(loss) before tax 7,613 (4,021) 3,592 3,602 (2,283) 1,319
Corporation tax (expense)/credit (2,212) 920 (1,292) (1,740) 195 (1,545)
UK film tax relief – 3,085 3,085  –  1,522 1,522
Deferred tax credit/(charge) 189 (222) (33) 144 328 472
Total corporation tax (expense)/credit (2,023) 3,783 1,760 (1,596)  2,045 449 
Profit/(loss) after tax 5,590 (238) 5,352   2,006 (238)  1,768 

During the period, the Group provided film finance totalling £1,885,000 to its wholly-owned subsidiary film production 
companies for the production of Robot Overlords, The Riot Club (formerly Posh), Pressure, Kill Your Friends and Spooks: 
The Greater Good (year ended 31 March 2013: £870,000 Belle and Camera Trap). 

Geographical information 
All revenues continue to arise primarily in the UK, being the Group’s country of domicile, except for £1.1m (year ended 
31 March 2013: £1.0m) of revenue generated from the Group’s overseas activities. 

Information about major customers 
Revenue from one Media Services customer, operating through several separate subsidiaries, of £17.5m (year ended 
31 March 2013: one customer £15.6m) was recognised in the year. No other single customer contributed 10% or more 
of the Group’s revenue in either 2013 or 2014. 
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4. Operating profit  
This is stated after charging: 

 Notes 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March

2013 
(restated) 

£000 

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense  2,016 1,699
Staff costs  6 12,447 10,235
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 4,236 3,399
Depreciation of investment property  13 133 133
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  76 600
Operating lease payments   1,996 1,889
Impairment of long-term assets  65 –
Amortisation of long-term assets 15 24 24

Operating lease payments relating to the cost to the Group of the operating lease of the Shepperton Studios premises 
were £1,334,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £1,227,000) and relating to the Teddington Studios premises were 
£662,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £662,000). 

5. Auditor’s remuneration 
The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
£000 

Fees payable to Company’s auditor for the audit of parent Company and Group 
financial statements 59 54
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates 
for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 39 34
Total audit fees 98 88
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates 
for other services: 
Audit-related assurance services 28 28
Other assurance services 8 –
Taxation compliance services 42 –
Taxation advisory services  94 60
Corporate finance services 44 –
Total fees for other services 216 88
Total fees 314 176
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6. Staff costs and Directors’ emoluments 
(a) Staff costs including Directors 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
£000 

Wages and salaries 9,581 8,114
Social security costs 1,043 843
Pension costs 578 490
Long-Term Incentive Plan 958 500
Other employee benefits 287 288
  12,447 10,235

(b)  Average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors: 

 

Year ended 
31 March

 2014
 No. 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
No. 

Management 18 17
Administration 80 66
Operating and technical 115 117
  213 200
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6. Staff costs and Directors’ emoluments continued 

 (c) Directors’ remuneration: 
 Year ended 31 March 2014  

 

Basic salary 
and fees 

£ 

Benefits
 in kind 

£ 

Annual 
bonus 

£ 

Pension 
contributions 

£ 

Total 
remuneration 

£ 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
Total 

remuneration
 £ 

Chairman  
Lord Grade of Yarmouth 105,000 n/a n/a n/a 105,000 105,000
Executive Directors  
Ivan Dunleavy  408,615 10,260 187,411 49,380 655,666 408,773
Nicholas Smith  238,192 7,198 135,182 28,774 409,346 262,293
Andrew M. Smith 151,421 5,275 34,410 12,080 203,186 161,373
Steve Christian* 40,000 nil nil nil 40,000 16,667
Christopher Naisby** 120,192 4,194 35,579 9,615 169,580 nil
Non-Executive Directors  
Steven Underwood nil nil nil nil nil nil
Neil Lees nil nil nil nil nil nil
Ruth Prior 42,000 1,015 nil nil 43,015 15,708
Thomas Allison nil nil nil nil nil nil

* The Group has a consultancy agreement for services related to the Isle of Man Investment Advisory Agreement with Gasworks Media Limited, a company 
incorporated in the Isle of Man, whose sole shareholder, Steve Christian, is also an Executive Director of the Group. The total value of the transactions, 
including reimbursement of expenses, during the year was £336,000. See Note 27 for further details. 

** The remuneration for Christopher Naisby shown above is total remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2014, including the period before his appointment 
to the Board on 30 September 2013. 

7. Exceptional administrative expenses 
Exceptional administrative expenses for the year were £548,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £2,997,000) and consist of: 

Group reorganisation 
The Group incurred exceptional reorganisation costs of £190,000 in the year (year ended 31 March 2013: £180,000), 
in relation to the restructuring of certain business areas. 

Teddington exit 
The Group announced plans to cease activity at the Teddington Studio site during 2013 and, as a result, established an 
onerous lease provision of £1,538,000 at 31 March 2013, plus asset impairments of £553,000 and exit costs of £28,000. 
During the year ending 31 March 2014, an additional provision of £172,000 has been recognised. 

Transaction costs 
The Group incurred exceptional transaction costs of £170,000 in the year (year ended 31 March 2013: £nil) in relation 
to a potential joint venture which has not progressed. 

AIM listing 
As a result of the Company’s ordinary shares admission to AIM in July 2012, the Group incurred £337,000 of non-
recurring professional adviser fees during the year ended 31 March 2013. Final costs incurred in the year ended  
31 March 2014 not previously provided for total £16,000. 
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7. Exceptional administrative expenses continued 
Isle of Man Media Development Fund 
The Group incurred costs of £361,000 in the year ended 31 March 2013, mainly in relation to professional fees as a result 
of signing an agreement with the Isle of Man Treasury (“IOMT”) to source and advise on film investment opportunities for 
the £25 million fund established by the IOMT and to monitor and capitalise on UK distribution rights in films and television 
programmes funded by the IOMT. No such costs have been incurred in the year to 31 March 2014. 

8. Interests in joint ventures 
The Group has interests in the following joint ventures: 

  % ownership interest   % voting rights 

Joint venture name 

Principal 
place of 
business 

31 March
 2014 

31 March 
 2013  

31 March 
2014 

31 March
 2013 

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited UK  50 50  50 50
Shepperton Studios Property Partnership UK 50 50  50 50
Pinewood Studio Berlin Film Services GmbH Germany 50 50  50 50
Pinewood Atlanta LLC USA 40 –  50 –
PAS Holdings Fayette LLC USA 40 –  50 –

Shepperton Studios Property Partnership 
The Group has a 50% interest in Shepperton Studios Property Partnership (“SSPP”), an entity controlled jointly with a 
third party, Aviva Group, which holds a 995-year lease on the Shepperton Studios property. Shepperton Studios Property 
Partnership is strategic to the Group’s business as it holds the lease to the Shepperton Studios site. 

During the year the Group received distributions of £1,931,000 from SSPP (year ended 31 March 2013: £801,000). 

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited 
The Group also has a 50% interest in Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited. There are no material amounts 
consolidated for this joint venture in either period. 

Pinewood Studio Berlin Film Services GmbH 
Pinewood Germany Limited has entered into a 50:50 joint venture with Studio Hamburg GmbH, to market their existing 
studio facilities in Hamburg and Berlin. Pinewood Studio Berlin Film Services GmbH is strategic to the Group’s business, 
given the similarity in nature to the Group’s core Media Services operations. There are no material amounts consolidated 
for this joint venture in either period. 

  



64 Pinewood Shepperton plc 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 
 Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

 

 

8. Interests in joint ventures continued 
Pinewood Atlanta LLC/PAS Holdings Fayette LLC 
During the current year, Pinewood Atlanta Limited entered into a 40:60 joint venture with River’s Rock LLC to develop land 
south of Atlanta, Georgia, USA, into world-class studio facilities. Pinewood will also provide sales and marketing facilities. 
The Group has a 50% voting interest in both joint venture entities. Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette LLC 
are strategic to the Group’s business, given the similarity in nature to the Group’s core Media Services operations. 

Following the adoption of IFRS 11 during the year ended 31 March 2014, all joint ventures are now measured using the 
equity method. None of the joint ventures are listed and therefore quoted market prices are not available. 

The table below illustrates the impact on the income statement, statement of financial position and cash flow statement 
upon the adoption of IFRS 11. In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 11, this information is given for the 
comparative period only. 

Income statement: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
 (As previously 

reported)  
£000 

IFRS 11 
adjustments

£000 

Year ended
31 March

2013 
(restated)

 £000 

Revenue – continuing operations 55,642 (666) 54,976
Cost of sales (37,823) (921) (38,744)
Gross profit 17,819 (1,587) 16,232
  
Operating profit 5,367 (1,581) 3,786
Share of results of joint ventures – 801 801
Finance costs (4,048) 780 (3,268)
Profit before tax 1,319 – 1,319
  
Profit for the year 1,768 – 1,768
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8. Interests in joint ventures continued 
Statement of financial position: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
 (As previously 

reported) 
£000 

IFRS 11 
adjustments

£000 

Year ended
31 March

2013 
(restated)

 £000 

Non-current assets   
Property, plant and equipment 125,792 (19,429) 106,363
Investment in joint ventures – 7,143 7,143
   
Current assets  
Trade receivables 6,830 (725) 6,105
  
Non-current liabilities  
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (44,213) 12,002 (32,211)
  
Current liabilities  
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (460) (445) (905)
Trade and other payables (19,619) 1,454 (18,165)
  
Total effect on equity 68,330 – 68,330

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s material joint ventures is set out below. The 
summarised financial information below represents amounts in associates financial statements prepared in accordance 
with IFRSs adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes. 

 SSPP  
Pinewood Atlanta  

Studios LLC 

 

31 March 
2014 
£000 

31 March  
2013 
£000  

31 March
 2014
£000 

31 March 
2013
£000 

Non-current assets 37,634  38,858    26,898 – 
Current assets 1,063 1,139   1,304 –
Non-current liabilities (24,004) (24,004)  (14,947) – 
Current liabilities (1,114) (1,146)  (4,874)  –
Equity attributable to owners  13,579  14,847  8,381 –
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8. Interests in joint ventures continued 
 SSPP  

Pinewood Atlanta  
Studios LLC  Total material joint ventures 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
£000  

Year ended
 31 March

 2014
£000 

Year ended 
 31 March 

2013 
£000  

Year ended
 31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
£000 

Revenue 1,708  1,332  187 –  1,895  1,332 
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive 
income/(loss)  2,288 1,602 (392)  –  1,896  1,602 
         
Group’s share of results of joint ventures 1,144 801 – –  1,144 801
Distributions received from joint venture 
during the year 1,931 801  – –  1,931 801

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in SSPP and Pinewood 
Atlanta Studios LLC recognised in the consolidated financial statements: 

 SSPP  
Pinewood Atlanta  

Studios LLC  Total material joint ventures 

 

31 March 
2014
£000 

31 March
2013
£000  

31 March 
2014
£000 

31 March 
 2013 
£000  

31 March
 2014
£000 

31 March 
2013
£000 

Net assets of joint venture  13,579  14,847  8,381  –  21,960 14,847
Proportion of Group’s ownership 
interest in the joint ventures  (6,790) (7,424) (5,029) –  (11,819) (7,424)
Other adjustments:   
Intercompany eliminations (433) (280) – –  (433) (280)
Ring fenced equity contribution 
from partner – – (2,314) –  (2,314) –
Carrying amount of the Group’s 
interest in the joint venture 6,356 7,143 1,038 –  7,394 7,143

Reconciliation of movement in investment in joint ventures: 

 

31 March
 2014
£000 

31 March
 2013
£000 

Investment in joint ventures at 1 April  7,143 7,143
Additional investment in joint ventures 1,038 –
Share of results of joint ventures 1,144 801
Less distributions received from joint ventures (1,931) (801)
Investment in joint ventures at 31 March 7,394 7,143
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9. Finance costs 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014

£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
(restated) 

£000 

Bank loans and overdrafts 1,618 1,527
Interest rate hedging 263 372
Finance fee amortisation 285 285
Finance charges payable under asset financing 167 117
Other finance charges 215 154
Fair value movements of cash flow hedges (112) –
Swap termination costs – 402
Exceptional finance costs  – 411
  2,436 3,268

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to £115,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £81,000) 
on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at a weighted average rate of general borrowing of 4.5%. 

Exceptional finance costs 
The Company incurred £411,000 of exceptional finance costs in the year ended 31 March 2013 in relation to the 
refinancing of its banking facilities. No such costs were incurred in the current year. 
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10. Taxation 
(a) The major components of corporation tax expense are: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Consolidated income statement:  
Current corporation tax:  
UK corporation tax 1,180 1,088
Foreign Tax suffered 259 –
UK Film Tax Relief (3,085) (1,522)
Amounts under/(over) provided in previous years (147) 457
Total current corporation tax charge (1,793) 23
Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 48 (342)
Amounts over provided in previous years (15) (130)
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 33 (472)
Tax credit in the income statement (1,760) (449)
 
The tax credit in the income statement comprises: 
Tax on profit before exceptional items 1,612 1,399
UK Film Tax Relief (3,085) (1,522)
Tax under/(over) provided in previous years (162) 327
Tax provision adjustments relating to exceptional items and swap termination costs (125) (653)
Tax credit in the income statement (1,760) (449)
 
Tax relating to items charged or credited to equity: 
Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax credit on movements in provisions for cash flow hedges – (3)
Tax credit in the statement of changes in equity – (3)

The Group statement of changes in equity is set out on page 46. 
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10. Taxation continued 
(b) Reconciliation of the total tax credit 
A reconciliation between the tax credit and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation 
tax in the UK for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Accounting profit before corporation tax  3,592 1,319
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by UK rate of 23% (2013: 24%) 826 317
Adjustments in respect of: 
UK Film Tax Relief  (3,085) (1,522)
Corporation tax under/(over) provided in previous years (147) 457
Deferred tax over provided in previous years (15) (130)
Non-allowable depreciation on buildings 169 179
Non-taxable income (30) –
Other non-allowable expenses 279 337
Overseas tax at higher rate 261 23
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 19 (173)
Effect of taxation rate change on provision for deferred taxation (182) (29)
Cash flow hedges 145 92
Corporation tax credit reported in the Group income statement (1,760) (449)

(c) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax relates to the following: 

Consolidated income statement:  

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Deferred tax credit arising on accelerated capital allowances (154) (120)
Short-term temporary differences (176) (116)
Tax losses 218 (328)
Cash flow hedge 145 92
Net deferred tax charge/(credit) 33 (472)
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10. Taxation continued 
(c) Deferred tax continued 
Consolidated statement of financial position: 

 

31 March 
2013
£000 

Charged to 
income 

statement 
£000 

Charged 
to equity

£000 

31 March 
2014
£000 

Accelerated capital allowances 1,316 (154) – 1,162
Short-term temporary differences (116) (176) – (292)
Tax losses (328) 218  – (110)
Fair value of the cash flow hedge (145) 145  – –
Net deferred tax liability 727 33  – 760

The deferred tax assets are shown net against the non-current deferred tax liability in the statement of financial position. 

The Government has announced a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax to 21% from 1 April 2014, although this 
is not expected to be substantively enacted until July 2014. A further 1% reduction in the main rate of corporation tax 
was announced in the 2013 budget and is due to take effect from 1 April 2015. 

Deferred tax has been calculated at 20%, which is the rate enacted by the Finance Act 2013. The future 2% main 
reduction is not expected to have a material impact on the Group financial statements. 

(d) Potential unrecognised deferred tax assets 
A potential deferred tax asset of £106,000 (31 March 2013: £122,000) in respect of £4,000 (31 March 2013: £4,000) 
non-trading losses and £501,000 (31 March 2013: £501,000) capital losses in Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited 
and £27,000 (31 March 2013: £27,000) trading losses in Teddington Studios Limited has not been recognised as it is 
not anticipated that suitable gains will arise to enable the reversal of these temporary differences. 

11. Earnings per ordinary share and dividend 
Earnings per ordinary share 
Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing profit for the period attributable to the holders of ordinary 
equity of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 

There are no potential ordinary shares outstanding from employee share schemes and therefore basic earnings per share 
are equivalent to diluted earnings per share. 

The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the income statement those items where the cost is of such size 
or incidence that the additional disclosure is required for the reader to understand the financial statements. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share are also presented, adjusting for the combined effect of the exceptional items. 

  



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 71 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 
 Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

 
 

 

11. Earnings per ordinary share and dividend continued 
Earnings per ordinary share continued 
The following reflects the profit and number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share 
computations: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 5,352 1,768
Adjustments to profit for calculation of adjusted earnings per share: 
Exceptional administrative expenses 548 2,997
Fair value movements of cash flow hedge (112) –
Exceptional finance costs – 411
Swap termination costs – 402
Taxation adjustments on exceptional items and swap termination costs (98) (653)
Adjusted profit for adjusted earnings per share 5,690 4,925
 

 Thousands Thousands 

Basic and diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 49,410 48,735
 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Earnings per share 
Basic and diluted for result for the year 10.8p 3.6p
Basic and diluted for result for the year adjusted for exceptional items 11.5p 10.1p

Dividend paid 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Interim dividend for year ending 31 March 2013 paid at 0.5p per share – 247
Final dividend for year ending 31 March 2013 paid at 1.5p per share 741 –
Interim dividend for year ending 31 March 2014 paid at 0.6p per share 296
 1,037 247

The Board is recommending a final dividend for approval at the Annual General Meeting and, based on the shares in 
issue at the date the Board approved the Group financial statements, this would amount to a total dividend payment 
of £1,235,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £741,000). 
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12. Property, plant and equipment 

 

Freehold 
land

£000 

Freehold 
buildings and 

improvements
£000 

Leasehold 
improvements

£000 

Fixtures, 
fittings and 
equipment 

£000 

Assets under 
construction

£000 
Total
£000 

Cost:       
At 1 April 2012 (restated) 56,471 50,200 2,630 31,673  412 141,386
Additions – 6,246 330 2,795 1,784 11,155
Disposals – (832) – (145) – (977)
Transfers – – 412 – (412) –
At 31 March 2013 (restated) 56,471 55,614 3,372 34,323 1,784 151,564
Additions 213 11,499 7 2,894 1,683 16,296
Disposals – (200) – (1,298) – (1,498)
At 31 March 2014 56,684 66,913 3,379 35,919 3,467 166,362
Depreciation:  
At 1 April 2012 (restated) 7,690 11,645 1,040 21,251   – 41,626
Provided during the year (restated) – 1,481 177 1,741 – 3,399
Impairment for the year  – – 528 25 – 553
Depreciation on disposals – (246) – (131) – (377)
At 31 March 2013 (restated) 7,690 12,880 1,745 22,886 – 45,201
Provided during the year – 1,912 246 2,078 – 4,236
Depreciation on disposals – (35) – (1,267) – (1,302)
At 31 March 2014 7,690 14,757 1,991 23,697 – 48,135
Net book value:  

At 31 March 2014 48,994 52,156 1,388 12,222 3,467 118,227
At 31 March 2013 (restated) 48,781 42,734 1,627 11,437 1,784 106,363

Assets under construction at 31 March 2014 and 2013 relate to costs capitalised under the Pinewood Studio Development 
Framework. These are not depreciated. On 19 June 2014, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
allowed the Company’s appeal and granted planning permission for this project. 

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to £115,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £81,000) 
on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at a weighted average rate of general borrowing of 4.5% 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 4.5%). 

The Group’s long-term loan is secured by a floating charge over the Group’s assets. 

An impairment of leasehold improvements and fixtures, fittings and equipment was recognised during the year ended 
31 March 2013 on obsolete assets at the Teddington site. 
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12. Property, plant and equipment continued 
Fixtures, fittings and equipment include the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under non-cancellable finance 
lease agreements: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Cost-capitalised finance lease 4,076 1,850
Accumulated depreciation (363) (82)
Net book value 3,713 1,768

The lease terms are five years, and ownership of the assets lies within the Group. Lease rentals amounting to £694,000 
(year ended 31 March 2013: £205,000) relating to the lease of this equipment are included in the income statement. 

13. Investment property 
 £000 

Cost: 
At 31 March 2014, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 6,615
Depreciation: 
At 31 March 2012 420
Provided during the year 133
At 31 March 2013 553
Provided during the year  133
At 31 March 2014 686
Net book value: 
At 31 March 2014 5,929
At 31 March 2013 6,062

No independent valuation has been undertaken at the year end. A Directors’ valuation was carried out in accordance 
with the ‘Red Book’ to determine the fair value of the investment property. A yield-based valuation has been used, 
which provided a fair value of £7,900,000 at 31 March 2014 using a 7.25% yield on annual rental income of £594,000 
and allowing for purchaser’s costs of 5.76%. The previous Directors’ valuation was performed at 31 March 2013 and 
also used the yield-based valuation method, which provided a fair value of £7,300,000, assuming a 7.50% yield and 
allowing for purchaser’s costs of 5.76%. 
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14. Intangible assets 
 

Goodwill 
£000 

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 5,604

Goodwill has been acquired through business combinations and has been allocated to the Group’s Media Services  
cash-generating unit. 

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is based on a value in use calculation and is tested at least annually 
for impairment. Other than goodwill there are no intangible assets with indefinite lives. 

Outcome of impairment review 
The recoverable amount of the Group’s Media Services cash-generating unit exceeds its carrying value and no impairment 
charge has been recognised (year ended 31 March 2013: no impairment charge recognised). 

Key assumptions 
The value in use calculations use five-year cash flow projections derived from the Board-approved budget for the next 
year and the Board-approved long-range plan and do not include non-cash-generating assets, any activities that the 
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the  
cash-generating unit. The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are: 

Discount rate  
The discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risks specific to the cash-generating unit. The discount 
rate was calculated using the Group’s cost of debt together with an estimate based on the average cost of equity, 
adjusted to reflect the market assessment of any risk specific to the cash-generating unit for which future estimates 
of cash flows have not been adjusted. The pre-tax discount rate used for the year ended 31 March 2014 is 7.8% 
(year ended 31 March 2013: 6.7%). 

Perpetuity growth rate  
The cash flows subsequent to the Board-approved period are based on the long-term growth rate prospects of the 
industry in which the Group operates. The perpetuity growth rate used is 2.5% (year ended 31 March 2013: 2.5%). 

Cash flow from operations 
Cash flow projections have been estimated using a combination of assumptions including, but not limited to, facility 
utilisation, income growth and Media Hub void ratios and rent increases. Considering previously achieved trading levels 
and the anticipated future operating environment for the business and taking into account any cost efficiencies which may 
be achieved, the Company has retained the assumptions used in its Board-approved budget and its long-range plan. 

Sensitivities 
The Group’s impairment review is sensitive to a change in the key assumptions used, notably the discount rate. 
The discount rate would need to move to 11.4% to result in a breakeven position and, should the discount rate remain 
at 7.8%, the perpetuity growth rate would need to be a negative 2.3% to reach a breakeven point. Based on the Group’s 
sensitivity analysis, a reasonably possible change in a single factor would not cause an impairment charge. 

  



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 75 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 
 Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

 
 

 

15. Long-term assets 

 

Toronto 
long-term 

agreement
£000 

Malaysia 
long-term 

agreement
£000 

Dominican 
Republic 

long-term 
agreement

£000 

Atlanta  
long-term 

agreement 
£000 

China 
long-term 

agreement
£000 

Total
£000 

Cost:       
At 31 March 2012 94 188 65 – – 347
Additions – 10 – 24 39 73
  
At 31 March 2013 94 198 65 24 39 420
Additions – – – 474 117 591
At 31 March 2014 94 198 65 498 156 1,011
Amortisation:  
At 31 March 2012 27 – – – – 27
Provided during the year 24 – – – – 24
At 31 March 2013 51 – – – – 51
Impairment during the year – – 65 – – 65
Provided during the year 24 – – – – 24
At 31 March 2014 75 – 65 – – 140
Carrying value:  
At 31 March 2014 19 198 – 498 156 871
At 31 March 2013 43 198 65 24 39 369

The Group signed a five-year sales and marketing agreement with Pinewood Toronto Studios on 26 May 2009. 
Transaction costs in relation to this agreement have been recognised as a long-term asset and are being amortised 
over the term of the original agreement. The agreement has been renewed during the year for a further five years 
to 26 May 2019. 

Pinewood Malaysia Limited signed a long-term agreement on 16 December 2009 until the ten-year anniversary of the 
opening of Pinewood Iskandar Malaysia Studios to provide marketing, operations and management support. Transaction 
costs of £198,000 in relation to this agreement have been recognised as a long-term asset. The costs will be amortised 
over the period of the agreement, commencing when the Studio opens for business. 

Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited signed an agreement on 20 May 2010 with a term of 15 years to provide sales, 
marketing and operations support to Pinewood Dominican Republic Studios. Transaction costs of £65,000 in relation 
to this agreement were previously recognised as a long-term asset and have been fully impaired in the year ended 
31 March 2014. 

On 29 April 2013, the Group announced it had entered into a joint venture (Pinewood Atlanta LLC), with River’s Rock LLC. 
The joint venture will work to initially develop 288 acres of land south of Atlanta, Georgia, USA, into world-class studio 
facilities for the production of film, television, music and video games. The business will operate under the Pinewood 
trademark and Pinewood has received 40% of the shareholding in the joint venture. Pinewood will provide the joint 
venture with sales and marketing services. Transaction costs of £498,000 in relation to this agreement have been 
recognised as a long-term asset. Transaction costs will be amortised over the first three years of the Studio’s operations, 
commencing when the Studio opens for business. The Group’s investment in the joint venture is included in Note 8. 
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15. Long-term assets continued 
On 17 April 2013, the Company signed an agreement with Seven Stars Media Limited, part of China’s leading private 
media group, which provides content creation and distribution, media services and events, to form a 50:50 joint operation 
to be called ‘Song Lin’. Transaction costs of £156,000 incurred in relation to this agreement have been recognised as a 
long-term asset. Transaction costs will be amortised upon commencement of revenue-generating activities by Song Lin. 

16. Inventories 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Finished goods 312 459

17. Trade receivables 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
 

£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 (restated)

£000 

Trade receivables 11,794 6,105

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 
 

Total
£000 

Neither past 
due nor 

impaired
£000 

Past due but not impaired 

 
<30 days

£000 
30–60 days 

£000 
60–90 days

£000 
90+ days

£000 

2014 11,794 11,040 232 99 43 380
2013 (restated) 6,105 5,194 469 108 56 278

At 31 March 2014, trade receivables at initial value of £70,000 (31 March 2013: £107,000) were impaired and fully 
provided for (see Note 28 for further details). 

The movement in impairment loss recognised is recorded within ‘Selling and distribution expenses’ in the Group income 
statement and is as follows: 

 £000 

At 1 April 2013 107
Provision for the year (27)
Utilised during the year (10)
At 31 March 2014 70
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18. Prepayments and other receivables 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
 £000 

Prepayments and other receivables 3,108 1,954
Corporation tax recoverable 1,552 –
 4,660 1,954

19. Cash and cash equivalents 
Included within the overdraft balance per the statement of financial position at the year end are amounts which are cash 
and cash equivalents unavailable for general use. These amounts relate to funds reserved solely for use in the production 
of specific Media Investment FPC operations. 

The reconciliation below shows the breakdown of total cash per the statement of financial position at the year end: 

 

31 March 
2014

 
£000 

31 March
 2013

(restated)
 £000 

Net cash available for general use (651) (2,539)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,426  1,634 
Total cash and cash equivalents/(overdraft) 775 (905)

20. Share capital and reserves 
Authorised 

 £000 

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013: 
Ordinary shares of 10p each 7,000

Issued, called up and fully paid 
 31 March 2014   31 March 2013 

 No. £000  No. £000 

Ordinary shares of 10p each 49,409,926 4,941  47,249,926 4,725
New shares issued:    
10p ordinary shares issued on 23 July 2012 – –  2,160,000 216
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 49,409,926 4,941  49,409,926 4,941

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 
per share at the general meetings of the Company. 
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20. Share capital and reserves continued 
Nature and purpose of other reserves 
Share premium reserve 
The share premium increased by £4,871,000 in the year ended 31 March 2013 as a result of the new shares issued, 
at 250p per share on 23 July 2012. No shares were issued in the current year. 

Capital redemption reserve 
The capital redemption reserve arose as a result of the repurchase of shares in 2001. 

Merger reserve 
On acquiring Shepperton Studios Limited, the Company issued ordinary shares as part of the consideration. Merger relief 
was taken in accordance with Section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 (since succeeded by Section 612 of the Companies 
Act 2006), and hence £348,000 was credited to the merger reserve. 

Fair value of cash flow hedge reserve 
At 31 March 2013, the cash flow hedge reserve was used to record the fair value gains or losses, and related deferred tax, 
on the hedging instruments used by the Group. The cash flow hedges were determined to be effective hedges. During the 
current year, the Group ceased to apply hedge accounting under IAS 39 and now recognises any fair value gains or loss 
through profit or loss. 

21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

 

Effective
 interest 

rate % Maturity 

31 March 
2014
£000 

31 March 
2013

(restated)
£000 

Current borrowings  
Bank overdraft Base rate + 2.5% margin Annual renewal – 905
  
Non-current borrowings  
Revolving credit facility LIBOR + variable margin 28 November 2016 38,000 30,000
Asset financing 1.63% 31 March 2018 3,665 2,592
Non-current drawn 
loan facilities    41,665 32,592
Cash flow hedge (£7.5m) 2.27% + variable margin 1 July 2013 – 35
Cash flow hedge (£15m) 1.66% + variable margin 28 November 2016 – 596
Secured bank loan 
arrangement costs   (726) (1,012)
  40,939 32,211
  
Total current and non-
current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings  40,939 33,116
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21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued 
Banking facilities 
On 28 May 2012, the Company arranged replacement banking facilities of up to £55m, which comprise a £50m revolving 
facility, of which £15m is a term facility, and a £5m overdraft facility subject to annual review. 

These facilities are secured on certain of the principal assets of the Group. 

The term facility contains scheduled repayments of £1.5m on 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016 and matures in November 
2016. The revolving credit facility has no scheduled repayments and matures in November 2016. 

The £5m overdraft facility is reviewed annually. 

The revolving facility has a range of covenants and events of default together with variable margins between 435 and 
285 basis points over LIBOR. 

The banking facilities become repayable on demand following a change of control in the Group if the Group and the 
syndicate of banks’ agent are unable to agree alternative terms within 30 days of the Group’s notification of a change 
of control. 

Covenants 
The banking agreements contain a range of covenants appropriate for the revolving facility and overdraft facility. 
The Group was covenant compliant at 31 March 2014. 

Asset financing facility 
The asset financing facility comprises of both a sterling chattel mortgage facility and a finance lease facility which are over 
a fixed term with fixed monthly payments and are secured over identifiable assets of an equal value. These assets are 
classified as ‘Fixtures, fittings and equipment’ within ‘Property, plant and equipment’ in the statement of financial position. 
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21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued 
Borrowing facilities 
The available but undrawn committed facilities are as follows: 

31 March 2014:        

 

Within  
1 year 
£000 

1–2 years
£000 

2–3 years
£000 

3–4 years
£000 

4–5 years 
£000 

More than 
5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Facilities:         
Bank overdraft 5,000   –  –  –  –  – 5,000
Revolving credit facility  – – 50,000  –  –  – 50,000
Asset financing facility 1,471 807 522 570 295 – 3,665
Total facilities 6,471 807 50,522 570 295  – 58,665
   
Drawn loans:         
Bank overdraft –  –  –  –  –  – –
Revolving credit facility  – – (38,000)  –  –  – (38,000)
Asset financing facility (1,471) (807) (522) (570) (295) – (3,665)
Total drawn loans (1,471) (807) (38,522) (570) (295) – (41,665)
          
Undrawn facilities:         
Bank overdraft 5,000   –  –  –  –  – 5,000
Revolving credit facility  – – 12,000  –  –  – 12,000
Asset financing facility  –  –  –  – –  –  –
Undrawn committed 
facilities 5,000   – 12,000 –  – – 17,000
  



 Pinewood Shepperton plc 81 
 Annual Report & Accounts 2014 
 Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued 

 
 

 

21. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued 
Borrowing facilities continued 
31 March 2013 (restated):       

 

Within  
1 year 
£000 

1–2 years
£000 

2–3 years
£000 

3–4 years
£000 

4–5 years 
£000 

More than 
5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Facilities:         
Bank overdraft 5,000   –  –  –  –  – 5,000
Revolving credit facility  – –  – 50,000  –  – 50,000
Asset financing facility  – 950 1,321  – 321  – 2,592
Total facilities 5,000  950 1,321 50,000  321 – 57,592
   
Drawn loans:         
Bank overdraft (905)  –  –  –  –  –  (905)
Revolving credit facility  – –  – (30,000)  –  – (30,000)
Asset financing facility  – (950) (1,321)  – (321)  – (2,592)
Total drawn loans  (905) (950)  (1,313) (30,000) (321) – (33,497)
          
Undrawn facilities:         
Bank overdraft 4,095   –  –  –  –  – 4,095
Revolving credit facility  – –  – 20,000  –  – 20,000
Asset financing facility  –  – –  – –  –  –
Undrawn committed facilities 4,095   – – 20,000  – – 24,095

22. Derivative financial instruments 
The Group’s cash flow hedges are recognised as derivative financial instruments. Fair value movements are recognised 
in the income statement within finance costs. Further details can be found in Note 28. 

 

31 March 
2014 
£000 

31 March 
2013
 £000 

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss: 
Non-current derivative financial instrument liabilities 175 –
Current derivative financial instrument liabilities 15 –
 190 –
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23. Trade and other payables 

 

31 March 
2014

 
£000 

31 March 
2013 

(restated) 
£000 

Trade payables 6,852 3,796
Value added tax 15 189
Other payables 2,707 1,237
Accruals 4,914 3,840
Capital expenditure related payables 837 2,425
Deferred income – Media Services 7,074 5,380
Deferred income – FPCs 6,067 1,298
  28,466 18,165

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

• Group trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and at 31 March 2014 were equivalent to 43 days (31 March 2013: 
33 days) of purchases, excluding film production companies. 

• Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are settled as they become due. 

• Accruals are non-interest-bearing and are settled as they become due. 

• Deferred income is recognised as it is earned. 

24. Provisions 
Teddington Studios Limited previously exercised an option to terminate its leasehold interest in Teddington Studios 
on 24 December 2014. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group determined the lease on the Studio to be an 
onerous contract. The provision for onerous lease contracts represents the present value of the future lease payments and 
unavoidable costs that the Group is presently obliged to make under the non-cancellable onerous operating lease contract 
for Teddington Studios, less net revenue expected to be earned on the lease from tenants and productions. The estimate 
may vary as a result of changes in the utilisation of the leased premises. The provision is expected to be fully utilised 
during the year ended 31 March 2015. 

 

Onerous 
lease 

provision 
£000 

Balance at 1 April 2012 –
Provision recognised 1,538
Balance at 31 March 2013 1,538
Utilisation of provision (1,211)
Additional provision recognised 172
Balance at 31 March 2014 499
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25. Obligations under leases 
Operating lease commitments – Company as a lessee  
Teddington Studios 
Teddington Studios Limited previously exercised an option to terminate its leasehold interest in Teddington Studios 
on 24 December 2014 and the Group determined the lease is an onerous contract. See Note 24 for further details. 

Future minimum rentals payable on the non-cancellable Teddington Studios onerous operating lease as at 31 March 2014 
and 31 March 2013 are as follows: 

 

31 March 
2014
 £000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Within one year 484 662
After one year but not more than five years – 484
 484 1,146

Shepperton Studios 
Shepperton Studios Limited entered into a commercial property lease on the Shepperton Studios property with 
Shepperton Studios Property Partnership, its 50% owned joint venture partnership. The lease term expires on 18 August 
2026, with no break clause. 

Under the terms of the agreement the tenant may not assign the lease until 18 August 2016. 

The net cost to the Company of future minimum rentals payable under the non-cancellable Shepperton Studios property 
operating lease as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 is as follows: 

 

31 March 
2014
 £000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Within one year 1,208 1,145
After one year but not more than five years 4,831 4,580
After five years but not more than 20 years 8,919 9,599
 14,958 15,324

Operating lease commitments – Group as a lessor 
The Group granted a 15-year Full Repairing and Insuring lease to Technicolor Limited, the occupier of the property 
classified as investment property, with the tenant’s first option to break on 11 June 2016; principal rent is subject 
to upwards-only annual reviews in line with RPI capped at 4%. 

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 are 
as follows: 

 

31 March 
2014
 £000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Within one year 594 572
After one year but not more than five years 2,376 2,292
After five years but not more than 20 years – 572
 2,970 3,436
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26. Commitments and contingencies 
Capital commitments 
At 31 March 2014, the Group had total capital commitments contracted for, but not provided in the accounts, of £nil 
(31 March 2013: £7,790,000). 

Guarantees 
At 31 March 2014, the Group had guarantees in place, in the form of documentary credits, that were not provided 
for in the accounts totalling £155,000 (31 March 2013: £155,000) in relation to certain Section 278 highways-related 
infrastructure. 

27. Related party disclosures 
The Group consists of a parent Company, Pinewood Shepperton plc, incorporated in the UK and a number of subsidiaries 
and joint ventures held directly and indirectly by Pinewood Shepperton plc. Listed below are details of the material 
interests in subsidiaries, including the country of incorporation which is also equivalent to each entity’s operating territory. 
Details of joint ventures are included in Note 8. 

Subsidiaries 
   % equity interest 

Company name Country of incorporation 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 

Pinewood Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Shepperton Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Teddington Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Baltray No.1 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Baltray No.2 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Shepperton Management Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood PSB Limited (previously Project 
Pinewood Property Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Saul’s Farm Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Malaysia Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Germany Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood USA Inc. USA 100 100
Pinewood Film Production Studios Canada Inc. Canada 100 100
Pinewood China Limited  United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Atlanta Limited  United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Last Passenger Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.2 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Belle Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.3 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
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27. Related party disclosures continued 
Subsidiaries continued 
   % equity interest 

Company name Country of incorporation 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 

Pinewood Camera Trap Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.4 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Christmas Candle Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.5 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films No.6 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films No.7 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films No.8 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.9 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.10 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.11 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Film Advisors Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Film Advisors (W) Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Studios Wales Limited United Kingdom 100 –
PSL Consulting Limited United Kingdom 100 –

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the Group to access or use assets and settle liabilities, with the 
exception of the cash restrictions relating to Film Production Company subsidiaries (“Pinewood Films No.X Limited”) 
as detailed in Note 19. 

Pinewood Shepperton plc has committed to provide financial support to several of its wholly-owned subsidiaries in a net 
current liability position to an amount as may be required to enable each subsidiary to fulfil its operational commitments 
to meet liabilities as and when they fall due and carry on their business as a going concern. Pinewood Shepperton plc 
intends to extend such support for a further 12 months from the date the current commitments expire as shown below. 

Company name 
Expiration date of
 financial support 

Pinewood Studios Limited 20 August 2014
Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited 20 August 2014
Baltray No.1 Limited 7 November 2014
Pinewood PSB Limited (previously Project Pinewood Property Limited) 7 November 2014
Pinewood Germany Limited 14 November 2014

Shepperton Studios Limited has a commercial property lease on the Shepperton Studios property. The net cost to 
the Group of principal lease rentals for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £1,208,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: 
£1,145,000). In addition, the Group pays a top-up rent to the joint venture partnership based on certain of its trading 
activities at the Shepperton Studios site. The net cost to the Group of the top-up rent for the year was £91,000 (year 
ended 31 March 2013: £82,000). 

Shepperton Management Limited manages the assets of the joint venture partnership and charges an asset management 
fee based on independent valuations of the Shepperton Studios site. Asset management fees charged during the year 
ended 31 March 2014 were £128,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £320,000). 
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27. Related party disclosures continued 
Subsidiaries continued 
Peel Management fee 
On 16 August 2012, the Group agreed an Advisory and Non-Executive Directors’ Services fee of £120,000 pa with Peel 
Acquisitions (Pegasus) Limited. Fees charged in relation to these services during the year were £120,000 (year ended 
31 March 2013: £230,000). 

Transaction with Director 
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group signed a consultancy agreement for services related to the Isle of Man 
Investment Advisory Agreement with Gasworks Media Limited, a company incorporated in the Isle of Man, whose sole 
shareholder, Steve Christian, is also an Executive Director of the Group. The total value of the transactions during the 
year was £336,000 (year ended 31 March 2013: £120,000), of which £111,000 remains outstanding for payment by the 
Group at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: £19,000). The balance owing is unsecured, interest-free and payable in cash 
upon invoicing. 

Audit exemption 
Pinewood Shepperton plc has given statutory guarantees against all the outstanding liabilities of the below listed wholly-
owned subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, thereby allowing these subsidiaries 
to be exempt from the annual audit requirement for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

Although the Company does not anticipate the guarantees to be called upon, the book values of the guaranteed liabilities, 
excluding intercompany balances, for each relevant subsidiary at 31 March 2014 are set out below. 

Company name 

Company 
Registration 

Number 

Book value 
of liabilities 

31 March 
2014 
£000 

Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited 07527390 –
Baltray No.1 Limited 05776674 266
Baltray No.2 Limited 05778635 –
Shepperton Management Limited 05907027 –
Pinewood PSB Limited (previously Project Pinewood Property Limited) 06300755 403
Saul’s Farm Limited 06233879 –
Pinewood Malaysia Limited 07074446 71
Pinewood Germany Limited 07079399 –
Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited 07096246 196
Pinewood China Limited 08355173 –
Pinewood Atlanta Limited 08355034 –
Pinewood Films Limited 07660856 6
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies 
The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, chattel mortgages, 
finance leases and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to provide finance for the 
Group’s operations. The Group has financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash that arise directly from 
its operations. 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors oversee the management of 
these risks and are supported by the appropriate members of the Executive Management Team, together with specialist 
advisers as required. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out with specialists involved who 
have the appropriate skills and experience. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes 
shall be undertaken. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such 
as equity risk. The Group’s financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and derivative 
financial instruments. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future values of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. In order to manage its interest rate risk, the Group’s policy 
is to have at least 50% (31 March 2013: 50%) of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest. To manage this, the Group 
enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specific intervals, the difference between fixed 
and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. 

At 31 March 2014, the Group had the following interest rate swaps in place to minimise the volatility in cash flows from 
a change in LIBOR: 

 Effective interest rate % Maturity 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
 £000 

Year ended
 31 March 2013 

£000 

Cash flow hedge 2.27% + variable margin 1 July 2013 – 7,500
Cash flow hedge 1.25% + variable margin 1 July 2014 7,500 –
Cash flow hedge 1.66% + variable margin 28 November 2016 15,000 15,000
     22,500 22,500

The interest swap finance costs are charged to the Group income statement when they are payable. These are 
payable on a quarterly basis in March, June, September and December. The change in the fair value is recognised 
in the income statement. 

At 31 March 2014, £38,000,000 of the Group’s revolving facility and overdraft facility (31 March 2013: £30,460,000 
including pre-let development facility) had been drawn (Note 21). £15,500,000 (31 March 2013: £19,502,000) of drawn 
facility is at a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin, or UK Bank base rate plus a margin, and is therefore subject 
to market risk through interest rate fluctuations. The remaining drawn loan of £22,500,000 (31 March 2013: 
£22,500,000) has been converted to a fixed rate with interest rate swaps. 
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Interest rate risk continued 
The Group has entered asset financing facilities over a fixed term with fixed monthly payments and are secured over 
identifiable assets of an equal value. These assets are classified as ‘Fixtures, fittings and equipment’ within ‘Property, 
plant and equipment’ on the statement of financial position. At 31 March 2014, the balance payable was £3,665,000 
(31 March 2013: £2,592,000). 

Taking into consideration the fixed rate instruments in place, a one percentage point increase in LIBOR would increase 
the interest charge, and reduce the Group profit before taxation, by £155,000 (31 March 2013 restated: £75,000). 

At 31 March 2014, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps and the asset finance facility, approximately 
63% (31 March 2013 restated: 76%) of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. 

A summary of fixed and floating rate debt at 31 March 2014 is as follows: 

31 March 2014: 

 

Within  
1 year 
£000 

1–2 years
£000 

2–3 years
£000 

3–4 years
£000 

4–5 years 
£000 

More than 
5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Secured bank loan 
at floating rate  –  –  (38,000)  –  –  –  (38,000)
Portion of secured loan 
effectively converted 
to fixed rate with an 
interest rate swap  –  –  (22,500)  –  –  –  (22,500)
Effective floating portion of 
secured loan at floating rate  –  –  (15,500)  –  –  – (15,500)
   
Fixed rate asset financing (1,471) (807) (522) (570) (295) – (3,665)
Fixed rate drawn loan  –  – (22,500)  –  –  – (22,500)
Floating rate drawn loans  –  –  (15,500)  –  – – (15,500)
Bank overdraft – – – – – – –
Total drawn loans (1,471) (807)  (38,522) (570) (295) – (41,665)
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Interest rate risk continued 
31 March 2013 (restated): 

 

Within  
1 year 
£000 

1–2 years
£000 

2–3 years
£000 

3–4 years
£000 

4–5 years 
£000 

More than 
5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Secured bank loan 
at floating rate  –  –  –  (30,000)  –  –  (30,000)
Portion of secured loan 
effectively converted 
to fixed rate with an 
interest rate swap  –  –  –  (22,500)  –  –  (22,500)
Effective floating portion of 
secured loan at floating rate  –  –  –  (7,500)  –  – (7,500)
   
Fixed rate asset financing  – (950) (1,321)  –  (321)  – (2,592)
Fixed rate drawn loan  –  –  – (22,500)  –  – (22,500)
Floating rate drawn loans  –  –  –  (7,500)  – – (7,500)
Bank overdraft (905) – – – – – (905)
Total drawn loans  (905) (950) (1,321)  (30,000) (321) – (33,497)

Foreign currency risk 
The Group does not hedge against foreign currency exposure due to its minimal exposure to foreign currency movements 
as its business is conducted primarily in UK sterling. The Board continues to review this area to identify any potential 
exposure with the increase in international arrangements. 

Equity price risk 
The Group does not hedge against equity price risk as it does not have exposure in this area. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables, 
and financial instruments. 

Credit risks related to receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed across the Group in accordance with policy, procedures and controls relating to customer 
credit risk management. The Group trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties and it is the Group’s policy that all 
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances 
are monitored on an ongoing basis to manage the Group’s exposure to bad debts. The requirement for impairment is 
reviewed each month on an individual customer basis and not on a collective basis. The review to assess the need for 
impairment is not dependent on the age of the receivable and is determined using business knowledge and individual 
circumstances specific to each customer. There were no changes to the Group policy during the year. As at 31 March 
2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk was £11,794,000 (31 March 2013 restated: £6,212,000), of which 
£70,000 (31 March 2013: £107,000) is considered to be potentially impaired and £754,000 (31 March 2013: £911,000) 
has exceeded credit terms but has not been impaired. Note 17 provides further details of the ageing profile of receivables. 
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Credit risk continued 
Credit risks related to financial instruments 
With respect to credit risk relating to cash, cash equivalents and other financial instruments, the Group’s exposure 
to credit arises from default of the counterparty, with the maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these 
instruments. At 31 March 2014, the Group has a positive cash balance (31 March 2013: negative cash balance) and has a 
total of £22,500,000 interest rate swaps (31 March 2013: £22,500,000) and a £3,665,000 (31 March 2013: £2,592,000) 
asset financing facility agreement. 

Liquidity risk 
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between the continuity of operating and development funding and flexibility 
through the use of an overdraft facility, a revolving facility and a share of a joint venture loan. Short-term flexibility is 
achieved by the overdraft facility of £5,000,000 (31 March 2013: £5,000,000) which is available to the Group for 
drawdown until 28 November 2016 (subject to an annual review). 

The revolving credit facility, which supports the operating activities of the Group, is available for drawdown until 
28 November 2016. 

The Board has reviewed the Group’s banking facilities and current levels of headroom on those facilities and considers that 
there is sufficient capacity going forward. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s main financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013: 

At 31 March 2014:       

 
On demand

£000 

Less than 
3 months

£000 
3–12 months

£000 
1–5 years 

£000 
> 5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Drawn facility loans – 387 1,161 47,890 – 49,438
Derivative financial instruments – 59 131 – – 190
Asset financing – 548 1,041 2,360 3,949
Trade and other payables 15,377 – – – – 15,377
  15,377 994 2,333 50,250 – 68,954

At 31 March 2013 (restated): 

 
On demand

£000 

Less than 
3 months

£000 
3–12 months

£000 
1–5 years 

£000 
> 5 years

£000 
Total
£000 

Drawn facility loans  – 278 834 41,567  – 42,679
Cash flow hedge – 76 129 426   631
Asset financing  – 285 856 1,641   – 2,782
Trade and other payables  11,487 – – – – 11,487
  11,487 639 1,819 43,634 – 57,579
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 
Set out below is a comparison by category of book values and fair values of all the Group’s financial assets and liabilities 
as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013: 

  Book value   Fair value 

 

31 March 
2014

 
£000 

31 March 
 2013 

(restated) 
£000  

31 March 
2014

 £000 

31 March
 2013 

(restated) 
£000 

Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 775 –  775 –
Trade receivables 11,794 6,105  11,794 6,105
Financial assets 12,569 6,105  12,569 6,105
   
Financial liabilities   
Bank overdraft – 905  – 905
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:   
– Floating rate borrowings 15,500 7,500  15,500 7,500
– Floating rate borrowings converted to fixed rate 22,500 22,500  22,500 22,500
– Asset financing 3,665 2,592  3,949 2,782
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 41,665 32,592  41,949 32,782
Trade and other payables 28,518 18,165  28,518 18,165
Financial liabilities 70,183 51,662  70,467 51,852
   
Derivative financial instruments held to manage 
the interest rate profile:    
Cash flow hedge (£7.5m at 2.27% + variable margin) – 35   – 35
Cash flow hedge (£7.5m at 1.25% + variable margin) 6 –  6 –
Cash flow hedge (£15.0m at 1.66% + variable margin) 184 596  184 596
Interest rate swaps – fair value of liability 190 631   190 631

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

As at 31 March 2014, there were no significant differences between the book value and fair value (as determined 
by market value) of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. The fair value of floating and fixed rate borrowings 
approximate to the carrying value because interest rates are reset to market rates at intervals of less than one year. 
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities continued 
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique: 

• Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 

• Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 
either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 
on observable market data. 

At 31 March 2014, the Group held interest rate swap contracts and an asset financing liability. The fair value of these 
derivative financial instruments is estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flow using readily available market 
data and represents a Level 2 measurement in the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. 

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no transfers between the different fair value measurement levels. 

As at 31 March 2014, the total interest rate instruments outstanding were for principal amounts totalling £22.5m. The 
contracts mature in November 2016 and therefore the cash flows and resulting effect on profit and loss are expected to 
occur over that period. The fair values of the interest rate instruments are disclosed as derivative financial instruments 
totalling £190,000 in the statement of financial position. Any movements in the fair values of the contracts are recognised 
in the income statement. 

Capital management 
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business as a going concern and maximise shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the strategy, objectives, policies or processes during 
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. 

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Included within net debt are 
interest-bearing loans and borrowings (excluding the derivatives, fair value of the cash flow hedge and loan costs) and 
cash. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. The gearing ratio is reviewed regularly by management with 
the appropriate measures being considered to maintain a capital structure to support the business. 
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28. Financial risk management, objectives and policies continued 
Capital management continued 

 

31 March 
2014

£000 

31 March 
2013 

(restated)
£000 

Non-current liabilities  
Non-current drawn loan facilities 41,665 32,592
Fair value of cash flow hedge – 631
Secured bank loan arrangement costs (726) (1,012)
Derivative financial instruments 175 –
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 41,114 32,211
 
Current liabilities 
Bank overdraft – 905
Derivative financial instruments 15 –
 
Current assets 
Cash (775) –
 
Net debt 40,354 33,116
Total equity 84,712 80,069
Gearing ratio 47.6% 41.4%
 
Net debt excluding derivatives, fair value and loan costs 40,890 33,497
Gearing ratio 48.3% 41.8%

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted for each class of financial asset, financial liability and 
equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2. 
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Independent auditor’s report  
to the members of Pinewood Shepperton plc 

 

We have audited the parent Company financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 31 March 
2014, which comprise the Parent Company balance sheet and the related Notes 1 to 15. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as 
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation 
of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility 
is to audit and express an opinion on the parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent Company’s 
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the 
financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial 
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent 
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 
In our opinion the parent Company financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2014; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the parent Company financial statements. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 
if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Other matter 
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 
31 March 2014. 

Christopher Robertson (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
Manchester, UK 

25 June 2014 
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Parent Company balance sheet 
at 31 March 2014 

 

 Notes 

31 March
 2014
£000 

31 March
 2013
£000 

Fixed assets    
Investments 6 32,705 32,705
Long-term assets 8 673 106
Total fixed assets  33,378 32,811
  
Current assets  
Cash   64 –
Debtors:  
Amounts falling due after one year 9 137,157 137,857
Amounts falling due within one year 9 406 275
Total current assets  137,627 138,132
  
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (76,216) (85,237)
  
Net current assets   61,411 52,895
  
Total assets less current liabilities  94,789 85,706
  
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 11 (39,643) (31,191)
  
 Total assets less total liabilities  55,146 54,515
    
Capital and reserves   
Called up share capital  12 4,941 4,941
Share premium account  13 48,718 48,718
Capital redemption reserve 13 135 135
Merger reserve 13 348 348
Fair value of cash flow hedge 13 – (328)
Retained earnings 13 1,004 701
Equity shareholders’ funds 13 55,146 54,515

The financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc, Company number: 03889552, were approved and authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014. They were signed on its behalf by: 

Christopher Naisby 
Finance Director 

The Notes on pages 97 to 107 are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the financial statements  
at 31 March 2014 
 

1. Authorisation of financial statements 
The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange. 
The financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton plc for the year ended 31 March 2014 were authorised for issue by 
the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and the statement of financial position was signed on the Board’s behalf by the 
Finance Director. Pinewood Shepperton plc is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. 
The registered office is located at Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire SL0 0NH, UK. 

2. Accounting policies 
Accounting convention 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with UK GAAP. 

Basis of preparation 
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to 
present its own profit and loss account. The profit of the Company for the year was £1,340,000 (year ended 31 March 
2013: £436,000). The Company accounts have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting 
Policies as they apply to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 and applied in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. 

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in paragraph 2D of FRS 29 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and 
has not disclosed information required by that standard, as the Group’s consolidated financial statements, in which the 
Company is included, provide equivalent disclosures for the Group under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. 

Going concern 
The Group’s assessment of going concern is explained in the Directors’ report on page 32 of the Annual Report. 

Fixed asset investments 
Investments in subsidiaries are stated initially at cost. The carrying values are reviewed for impairment if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. 

Loan issue costs 
Loans are initially recorded at their net proceeds. The loan issue costs are amortised in the profit and loss account over 
the remaining maturity of the loans at a constant carrying amount and are reviewed for changes in circumstances that 
may indicate that the loans will not be held to maturity. 

Share issue costs 
Costs directly attributable to the raising of equity are offset against share premium arising on share issuance. 

Financial assets 
Financial assets in the scope of FRS 26 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or as available-for-sale 
financial assets, as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and 
re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured 
at fair value. 

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, being the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way transactions require delivery of assets within the timeframe generally 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on 
their classification, as follows: 
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2. Accounting policies continued 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market, do not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as either fair value through profit and loss 
or available-for-sale. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of 
money is significant. Gains and losses are recognised in profit when the loans and receivables are derecognised or 
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced, with the amount of the loss recognised in administration costs. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. 

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, to the extent that the carrying 
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Company has interest rate swaps to hedge against risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. These derivative 
financial instruments are stated at fair value. 

The fair values of the interest rate swap contracts are determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. 
The interest rate swaps are cash flow hedges which hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable to the 
interest rate risk on the Company’s external borrowings. 

Pensions 
The Company operates defined contribution schemes. Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they 
become payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes. 

Corporation taxes 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial 
position date. 

Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements, with the following exception: 

• Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the Directors consider that it is more likely than not that there 
will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. 

• Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which 
timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial 
position dates. 
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3. Auditor’s remuneration 

 

Year ended 
31 March

 2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
£000 

Audit of the financial statements 5 5
Other fees to auditors: 
– taxation services  5 5
 10 10

4. Directors’ remuneration 
 Year ended 31 March 2014  

 

Basic salary 
and fees 

£ 

Benefits
 in kind 

£ 

Annual 
bonus 

£ 

Pension 
contributions 

£ 

Total 
remuneration 

£ 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
Total 

remuneration
 £ 

Chairman  
Lord Grade of Yarmouth 105,000 n/a n/a n/a 105,000 105,000
Executive Directors  
Ivan Dunleavy  408,615 10,260 187,411 49,380 655,666 408,773
Nicholas Smith  238,192 7,198 135,182 28,774 409,346 262,293
Andrew M. Smith 151,421 5,275 34,410 12,080 203,186 161,373
Steve Christian 40,000 nil nil nil 40,000 16,667
Christopher Naisby 120,192 4,194 35,579 9,615 169,580 nil
Non-Executive Directors  
Steven Underwood nil nil nil nil nil nil
Neil Lees nil nil nil nil nil nil
Ruth Prior 42,000 1,015 nil nil 43,015 15,708
Thomas Allison nil nil nil nil nil nil

None of the above Directors received reimbursement for expenses during the year requiring separate disclosure 
as required by The Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. 

The Company had no employees other than the Directors above in either the current or previous year. 
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5. Taxation 
(a) Analysis of charge for the year: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March

 2013
£000 

Current tax:  
UK corporation tax –
Prior year adjustments – 47
Total current corporation tax – 47
Deferred tax: 
Origination and reversal of timing differences (177) (92)
Cash flow hedge – 92
Total deferred tax (177) –
Total tax (credit)/charge (177) 47
  
Tax relating to items charged or credited to equity 
Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax charge reported in equity on cash flow hedges – (3)
Tax charge in the statement of changes in equity – (3)

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the year: 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014
£000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013
£000 

Accounting profit before corporation tax  1,163 483
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by UK rate of 23% (2013: 24%) 267 116
Non-deductible expenses (59) 77
Other short-term timing differences (220) 28
Group relief claimed (165) (313)
Cash flow hedge – 92
Adjustments in respect of prior period – 47
Corporation tax (credit)/expense reported in the income statement (177) 47
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6. Investments 
  £000 

Cost: 
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 32,705

Details of the investments in which the Group and the Company (unless indicated) holds 20% or more of the nominal 
value of any class of share capital or joint venture interests are as follows: 

   % equity interest 

Company name Country of incorporation 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 

Pinewood Studios Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Shepperton Studios Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Teddington Studios Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Baltray No.1 Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Baltray No.2 Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Shepperton Management Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood PSB Limited (previously Project 
Pinewood Property Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Saul’s Farm Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Malaysia Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Germany Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited* United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood USA Inc.* USA 100 100
Pinewood Film Production Studios Canada Inc.* Canada 100 100
Pinewood China Limited*  United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Atlanta Limited  United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Last Passenger Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.2 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Belle Limited   
(previously Pinewood Films No.3 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Camera Trap Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.4 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Christmas Candle Limited 
(previously Pinewood Films No.5 Limited) United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films No.6 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Pinewood Films No.7 Limited United Kingdom 100 100
* Held by Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited. 
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6. Investments continued 
   % equity interest 

Company name Country of incorporation 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 

Pinewood Films No.8 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.9 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.10 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Films No.11 Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Film Advisors Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Film Advisors (W) Limited United Kingdom 100 –
Pinewood Studios Wales Limited United Kingdom 100 –
PSL Consulting Limited United Kingdom 100 –

* Held by Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited. 

The Company also holds investments in several joint ventures: 
   % equity interest 

Company name Country of incorporation 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 

Shepperton Studios Property Partnership United Kingdom 50 50
Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limited United Kingdom 50 50
Pinewood Studios Berlin Film Services GmbH*** Germany 50 50
Pinewood Atlanta LLC** USA 40 –
PAS Holdings Fayette LLC** USA 40 –

**  Held by Pinewood USA Inc. 

*** Held by Pinewood Germany Limited. 

The accounting reference date for Shepperton Studios Property Partnership, Shepperton Studios (General Partner) 
Limited, Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette LLC is 31 December. 

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries using the cost model. 

Audit exemption 
Pinewood Shepperton plc has given statutory guarantees against all the outstanding liabilities of the below listed wholly-
owned subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, thereby allowing these subsidiaries 
to be exempt from the annual audit requirement for the year ended 31 March 2014. 
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6. Investments continued 
Audit exemption continued 
Although the Company does not anticipate the guarantees to be called upon, the book values of the guaranteed liabilities, 
excluding intercompany balances, for each relevant subsidiary at 31 March 2014 are set out below. 

Company name 

Company 
Registration 

Number 

Book value 
of liabilities 

31 March 
2014
 £000 

Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited 07527390 –
Baltray No.1 Limited 05776674 266
Baltray No.2 Limited 05778635 –
Shepperton Management Limited 05907027 –
Pinewood PSB Limited (previously Project Pinewood Property Limited) 06300755 403
Saul’s Farm Limited 06233879 –
Pinewood Malaysia Limited 07074446 71
Pinewood Germany Limited 07079399 –
Pinewood Dominican Republic Limited 07096246 196
Pinewood China Limited 08355173 –
Pinewood Atlanta Limited 08355034 –
Pinewood Films Limited 07660856 6

7. Dividends 

 

Year ended 
31 March

 2014
£000 

Year ended
31 March 

2013
£000 

Interim dividend for year ended 31 March 2013 paid at 0.5p per share – 247
Final dividend for year ending 31 March 2013 paid at 1.5p per share 741 –
Interim dividend for year ending 31 March 2014 paid at 0.6p per share 296 –
 1,037 247

The Board is committed to pay dividends in line with its dividend policy of not less than three times cover. 
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8. Long-term assets 

 

Toronto 
long-term 

agreement
£000 

Atlanta 
 long-term 
agreement 

£000 

China 
long-term 

agreement
£000 

Total
£000 

Cost:     
At 31 March 2012 94 – – 94
Additions – 24 39 63
At 31 March 2013 94 24 39 157
Additions – 474 117 591
At 31 March 2014 94 498 156 748
Amortisation:  
At 31 March 2012 27 – – 27
Provided during the year 24 – – 24
At 31 March 2013 51 – – 51
Provided during the year 24 – – 24
At 31 March 2014 75 – – 75
Carrying value:  
At 31 March 2014 19 498 156 673
At 31 March 2013 43 24 39 106

The Company signed a five-year sales and marketing agreement with Pinewood Toronto Studios on 26 May 2009. 
Transaction costs in relation to this agreement have been recognised as a long-term asset and are being amortised over 
the term of the agreement. The agreement has been renewed during the year for a further five years to 26 May 2019. 

On 29 April 2013, the Company announced it had entered into a joint venture (Pinewood Atlanta LLC), with River’s Rock 
LLC. The joint venture will work to initially develop 288 acres of land south of Atlanta, Georgia, USA, into world-class 
studio facilities for the production of film, television, music and video games. The business will operate under the 
Pinewood trademark and Pinewood has received 40% of the shareholding in the joint venture. Pinewood will provide the 
joint venture with sales and marketing services. Transaction costs of £498,000 in relation to this agreement have been 
recognised as a long-term asset. Transaction costs will be amortised over the first three years of the Studio’s operations, 
commencing when the Studio opens for business. 

On 17 April 2013, the Company signed an agreement with Seven Stars Media Limited, part of China’s leading private 
media group which provides content creation and distribution, media services and events, to form a 50:50 joint operation 
to be called ‘Song Lin’. Transaction costs of £156,000 incurred in relation to this agreement have been recognised as a 
long-term asset. Transaction costs will be amortised upon commencement of revenue-generating activities by Song Lin. 
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9. Debtors 

 

31 March 
2014
£000 

31 March 
2013
£000 

Due from subsidiary undertakings 137,157 137,857
Prepayments and accrued income 406 275
 137,563 138,132
 
Amounts falling due after more than one year included above are:  
Due from subsidiary undertakings 137,157 137,857

10. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

 

31 March 
2014
 £000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 70,931 81,257
Other creditors 3,799 2,219
Asset financing 1,471 1,020
Bank overdraft – 741
Derivative financial instruments 15 –
  76,216 85,237

11. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

 

31 March 
2014 
£000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Revolving credit facility 38,000 30,000
Secured bank loan arrangement costs (726) (1,012)
Asset financing  2,194 1,572
Fair value of cash flow hedge  – 631
Derivative financial instruments 175 –
   39,643 31,191
Amounts falling due: 
– in more than one year but not more than two years 1,157 1,020
– in more than two years but not more than five years 38,486 30,171
 39,643 31,191

On 28 May 2012, the Company arranged banking facilities of up to £55m, which comprise a £35m revolving credit facility, 
a £15m term facility and a £5m overdraft facility subject to annual review. 

These facilities are secured on certain of the principal assets of the Group. 

The term facility contains scheduled repayments of £1.5m on 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016 and matures in November 
2016. The revolving credit facility has no scheduled repayments and matures in November 2016. 
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11. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year continued 
The £5m overdraft facility is reviewed annually. 

The revolving credit and term facilities have a range of covenants and events of default together with variable margins 
between 435 and 285 basis points over LIBOR. 

The banking facilities become repayable on demand following a change of control in the Group if the Group and the 
syndicate of banks’ agent are unable to agree alternative terms within 30 days of the Group’s notification of a change 
of control. 

Covenants 
The banking agreements contain a range of covenants appropriate for the revolving facility, term facility and overdraft 
facility. The Group was covenant-compliant at 31 March 2014. 

Cash flow hedge 
At 31 March 2014, the Group held interest rate swaps designated as hedges against drawn debt obligations amounting 
to £22,500,000 (31 March 2013: £22,500,000). Further information can be found in Note 28 of the Group accounts. 

Asset financing facility 
The asset financing facility is a sterling chattel mortgage facility over a fixed term, with fixed monthly payments, and is 
secured over identifiable assets of an equal value. These assets are classified as ‘Fixtures, fittings and equipment’ within 
‘Property, plant and equipment’ in the statement of financial position. 

At 31 March 2014, the Group had the following interest rate swaps in place to minimise the volatility in cash flows from 
a change in LIBOR: 

 
Effective interest rate 

% Maturity 

31 March 
2014 
£000 

31 March 
2013 
£000 

Cash flow hedge 2.27% + variable margin 1 July 2013 – 7,500
Cash flow hedge 1.25% + variable margin 1 July 2014 7,500 –
Cash flow hedge 1.66% + variable margin 28 November 2016 15,000 15,000
     22,500 22,500

The Company’s cash flow hedges are treated as derivative financial instruments and fair value movements are recognised 
in the income statement. 

The interest swap finance costs are charged to the income statement when they are payable. These are payable 
on a quarterly basis in March, June, September and December. 
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12. Share capital 
Authorised 
 £000 

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013: 
Ordinary shares of 10p each 7,000

Issued, called up and fully paid 
 31 March 2014  31 March 2013 

 No. £000  No. £000 

Ordinary shares of 10p each 49,409,926 4,941  47,249,926 4,725
New shares issued:   
10p ordinary shares issued on 23 July 2012 – –  2,160,000 216
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 49,409,926 4,941  49,409,926 4,941

13. Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds and movements on reserves 

 

Share  
capital  

£000 

Share 
premium 

£000 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
£000 

Merger 
reserve 

£000 

Fair value of 
cash flow 

hedge  
reserve  

£000 

Retained 
earnings 

£000 

Total 
equity 
£000 

At 1 April 2012 4,725 43,847 135 348 (732) 512 48,835
Profit for the year – – – – – 436 436
Dividend paid (Note 7) – – – – – (247) (247)
New shares issued 216 4,871 – – – – 5,087
Fair value of cash flow hedges – – – – 404 – 404
At 31 March 2013 4,941 48,718 135 348 (328) 701 54,515
Profit for the year – – – – – 1,340 1,340
Dividend paid (Note 7) – – – – – (1,037) (1,037)
Fair value of cash flow hedges – – – – 328 – 328
At 31 March 2014 4,941 48,718 135 348 – 1,004 55,146

14. Related party disclosures 
The Company has taken the exemption available to it under FRS 8 Related party disclosures not to disclose its 
transactions with related parties as the disclosures are included in the financial statements of the consolidated Group. 

15. Ultimate parent undertaking 
The ultimate holding company in the year to 31 March 2014 was Tokenhouse Limited, a company incorporated in the 
Isle of Man. 

Tokenhouse Limited is controlled by the 1997 Billown settlement trust. 

The largest group of companies, of which the Company is a member that produces consolidated accounts, is Peel Holdings 
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Isle of Man. 

The smallest group of companies, of which the Company is a member that produces consolidated accounts, 
is Goodweather Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Isle of Man. 
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Forward-looking statements 

 

This announcement includes forward-looking statements that are based on current expectations and assumptions. 
They involve risks and uncertainties and may differ, possibly materially, from actual results, performance and 
achievement. Neither the Company, nor any of its Directors, undertakes any obligation to update publicly or revise 
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent 
legally required.  
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Company Secretary 
A M Smith 

Head Office, Registered office  
and Directors’ address 
Pinewood Shepperton plc 
Pinewood Road 
Iver Heath 
Buckinghamshire SL0 0NH 

Company registration number 
3889552 

Investor relations website 
available at www.pinewoodgroup.com 

Financial Adviser 
N M Rothschild and Sons  
1 Park Row 
Leeds LS1 5NR 

Proposed Nominated Adviser and Broker 
N+1 Singer 
One Bartholomew Lane 
London EC2N 2AX 

Legal Advisers to the Company 
Travers Smith LLP 
10 Snow Hill 
London EC1A 2AL 

Auditors 
Deloitte LLP 
2 Hardman Street 
Manchester M3 3HF 

Registrars and Receiving Agents 
Equiniti Limited 
Apsect House 
Spencer Road 
Lancing 
West Sussex BN99 6DA 

Principal Bankers 
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 
135 Bishopsgate 
London EC2M 3UR 

Lloyds TSB Bank plc 
25 Gresham Street 
London EC2V 7HN

 

 

Annual General Meeting 
The notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held at the offices of Travers Smith LLP, 
10 Snow Hill, London EC1A 2AC at 10.30 am on 29 September 2014, together with an explanation of the resolutions 
to be proposed at the meeting, will be contained in a circular to shareholders enclosed with the Annual Report. 

 

Designed and produced by Radley Yeldar (London) www.ry.com
This report is printed on Core Silk which is FSC® certified. The printer is FSC and ISO 14001 certified.  
FSC – Forest Stewardship Council. This ensures that there is an audited chain of custody from the 
tree in the well-managed forest through to the finished document in the printing factory. 
ISO 14001 – A pattern of control for an environmental management system against which an 
organisation can be accredited by a third party. 
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